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PARTI

his Annual Report on Form 10-KSB contains forward-looking statements, as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
f 1995, and information relating to us that are based on the beliefs of our management, as well as assumptions made by, and the
1formation currently available to, our management. When used in this Annual Report, the words “estimate,” “project,” “believe,”
anticipate,” “intend,” “expect” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect
ur current views with respect to future events, and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
1aterially from those contemplated in these forward-looking statements, including those risks discussed in this Annual Report. You
re cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report.
“xcept for special circumstances in which a duty to update arises when prior disclosure becomes materially misleading in light of
ubsequent circumstances, we do not intend to update any of these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after
he date of this Annual Report, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. You should carefully review the risk factors set
Eonh in other reports or documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Overview

Voxware is a leading provider of software for voice recogaition solutions that direct the work of the distribution center workforce. On
product, Voxware 3.0, enables warehouse workers to perform a wide array of tasks such as picking, receiving, and put away more
efficiently and effectively.

' |
Enabled by our patented speech recognition Voice Extensible Markup Language, or VoiceXML, Web browser technology, the !
Voxware solution creates a dynamic, real-time link between highly mobile workers, the warehouse management system, or WMS, an
supervisory personnel. Workers wearing a small wireless portable computer and a headset receive their directions from the Company’
software via a voice. The worker in turn talks back to the computer, telling it what product/parts they have retrieved and asking for
the next set of instructions. Unlike a paper based system, this is real-time interaction with its inherent advantages. Additionally,
unlike a bar code scanning system, it is hands-free, thus enabling the worker to be more productive and just as accurate. We believe
that our patented solution is unique in the industry because it is the first open standards, Web-based, people-centric, interactive speect
recognition technology engineered specifically to operate in highly demanding industrial environments. Voxware offers broad !
language support for a culturally diverse workforce, ’
While a full voice recognition solution is a combination of software, hardware and professional services, our primary focus and the
core of our business is the software component of the solution. Customers may choose from a variety of certified hardware devices,
which may or may not be supplied by Voxware. Customers may choose to have solutions delivered by purchasing services from
certified Voxware partners who also resell the Voxware software. Thus, software that both enables voice recognition and also
facilitates the creation of voice applications or workflows is at the heart of our business. !

We sell Voxware primarily to large companies that operate warehouses and distribution centers. We have customers from a variety of
industry sectors, including food service, grocery, retail, consumer packaged goods, automotive parts, third-party logistics providers
and wholesale distribution. Our technology has the ability to integrate easily with an external WMS,

We also sell software and some hardware accessories to value-added resellers, or VARs who in turn develop and deliver voice
solutions based on Voxware software for their customers.

Voxware revenues are generated primarily from sottware license fees, maintenance fees, professional services and hardware products
sales.

Products and Services

The Voxware 3.0 product line is the primary focus of our operations. It targets the mobile, front line workforce in modernized
distribution centers, providing a highly interactive means of utilizing the powers of hearing and speech to optimize many logistics
tasks. : '

While Voxware 3.0 is targeted at the warehousing market today, its voice recognition technology and tool set are open in design and
therefore could be applied to other markets in which highly accurate voice recognition in a demanding environment would be
important. At the present time, the Company is focused on growing its market share within the warehousing sector, but we are not
foreclosing on opportunities outside of that sector.

Prior to March 2006, the Company delivered voice solutions using its VoiceLogistics product technology. This software was a
precursor to today’s Voxware 3.0, in which custom solutions were created for each new customer.

In March 2006, we launched VoiceLogistics Pro which included a basic suite of tools for designing, developing and integrating voice-
enabled logistics solutions. In May 2007 we launched Voxware 3.0, superseding VoiceLogistics Pro and based on its success as the
first open service oriented architecture-based, or SOA-based, voice software product for the logistics industry. Usable by non-
programmers, Voxware 3.0 eliminates up to 90% of the coding effort required by conventional voice products, including Voxware's
legacy VoiceLogistics product line. The output is a robust voice solution, complete with an operational voice interface and a direct
connection to the appropriate WMS/ERP system. Voxware 3.0 utilizes an SOA-based modern Web service architecture, delivering
complete independence from the specifics of client hardware, operating system, data base and WMS/ERP system details.

Each Voxware solution includes software and hardware components, and generally some professional services elements. As noted
above, the software always is provided by Voxware — either directly or through a VAR — but hardware and services may be acquired
from other parties.



he software component of the solution includes two important Voxware software technologies that are installed on each wearable
omputer: our noise-robust Voxware [ntegrated Speech Recognition Engine (VISE™), designed specifically for high performance
dustrial environments, and our patented Voice XML voice browser, called VoxBrowser™, which uses standard Web technologies to
nable application-level functionality on any certified wearable computer.

oxware 3.0 solutions also generally include a Voxware application software component installed on a server that communicates with
central WMS (or system of record) and a variety of special purpose wearable computers that are worn by individual warehouse
orkers.

rior to fiscal 2006, Voxware manufactured and sold a proprietary client hardware device which was sold as the hardware component
f the voice solution. In September 2005, to more effectively differentiate the Company to compete with voice recognition vendors
ho also offered proprietary hardware devices, we introduced our hardware-independent strategy to enable leading hardware Auto-1D
anufacturers to bring voice 16 a wide range of their mobile computers with the availability of VoxBrowser. These devices are put
rough Voxware's Powered by Voxware™ Certification Program, a process required of all third-party wireless computer
anufacturers, enabling them to integrate our client software, VoxBrowser, on their mobile devices. Every terminal submitted for
ertification must meet Voxware’s minimum requirements. This process provides official recognition, and provides our customers

ith the confidence that all devices Powered by Voxware will operate satisfactorily in their environments,

o date we have certified a variety of wireless devices manufactured by LXE Inc. (“LXE”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
lectromagnetic Sciences, lnc.) and Motorola, Inc. During fiscal 2007 we (either directly or through partners) deployed the first
ustomers to operate voice solutions using devices manufactured by these two companies. We are continuing to work with these and
ther major vendors of wireless computers to provide VoxBrowser on their devices. We believe this gives customers an additional
hoice in hardware, and allows us to expand our product line with new, multi-modal versions of Voxware 3.0, which will work both
ia speech recognition and other modes, such as keyboard, screen, RFID, or barcode scanning, as appropriate.

uring fiscal year 2006, we entered into an agreement with LXE to outsource the manufacturing of our VLS-410 hardware to LXE.
nder the terms of the agreement, we licensed certain hardware technology to LXE for production and distribution by LXE. LXE
uthorized us to resell certain next generation hardware products to be developed in the future. The agreement has an initial term of
ve years and is subject to automatic renewals. Also during fiscal year 2006, Motorola endorsed our products by designating us as a
PartnerSeleet Premier Independent Software Vendor™ of voice-based solutions. We are actively soliciting similar relationships with
ther leading equipment vendors and their distributors,

e offer professional services that include system implementation and training, as well as assistance in tailoring our solution to meet
pecific requirements within customers’ facilities. We also offer customers the option to enter into extended warranties on hardware,
nd annual software maintenance and customer support arrangements with us. We will continue to offer maintenance support and
ake software updates available to our customer’s tailored solutions, as well as provide enhancements, upon their request.

¢ offer professional services to partners that include training in Voxware 3.0 software and voice solution implementation, as well as
onsulting, development, or deployment services on specific projects.

ales and Distribution

e sell directly to large companies in North America and Europe. We also utilize third parties such as consultants, VARs, wireless
omputer manufacturers and vendors, and systems integrators to sell or assist us in selling our products. To date, we have signed
greements with several third-party partners. We believe that the establishment of a network of third-party partners with extensive
nowledge of specific market sectors is important to our long-term success in those sectors,

ith the introduction of VoxBrowser in 2005, VoiceLogistics Pro in March 2006, and Voxware 3.0 in May 2007, we are investing
ubstantial resources into expanding our partnership channels in North America and abroad. This is evidenced through our
elationships with LXE, Motorola, Peak Technologies, and RedPrairie Corporation, among others. Qur direct sales efforts currently
ontribute the majority of our revenues; we expect a gradual shift to more third-party generated revenues in the future as our channel
artner efforts expand.

Flistorically, our sales were generated primarily by our own sales force working directly with the end users of the Voxware solution.

Joxware is actively working with third-party partners who purchase products and accessories from us at a discount and incorporate
hem into application systems for various target markets and/or consult with us in the development of application systems for end
isers. These application systems integrate our Voxware software and Voxware accessories with additional hardware and software
omponents, and include service and product support. These partners then resell or lease the application systems to their end user
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customers. Under these types of partnership agreements, we warrant to repair or replace any defective hardware product delivered to
third-party partner or their customer, provided that we are notified of the defective product generally within one year from delivery of
the product to the end user. We believe that in the industrial speech recognition market, strategic partnerships with these various
parties are critical to our success. We anticipate that, over time, an increasingly greater percentage of our revenues will be generated
from software components as our partners supply a greater percentage of hardware and professional services to new Voxware
implementations.

Building a network of third-party partners such as those described above takes time and requires different sales and marketing
expertise than that required 1o build a direct to end user software distribution channel, or an original equipment manufacturer, or
OEM, relationship for technology. Challenges we face in establishing this network include overcoming existing relationships
potential partners have with our competitors, and training new partners to develop and sell solutions based on Voxware 3.0." There ca
be no assurance that we will be successful in developing strategic relationships with channel partners, hardware venders, VARs,
logistics consultants or WMS vendors that produce a favorable impact on our operations.

Customers

Our customers include some of the largest and best-known companies in their respective industries, including 7-Eleven, Inc., Argos
Limited, AutoZone, Inc., Dunkin’ Donuts, Somerfield Stores Ltd., West Marine, Inc., and US Foodservice. We grew our customer
base in fiscal 2007 and are optimistic our increased momentum in key market sectors such as retail, consumer packaged goods and
food service will continue. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, US Foodservice accounted for approximately 22% of our total
revenues. There can be no assurance that this customer will continue 1o seek our products and services at the same levels as it has in
the past, or at all.

Our standard warranty policy generally allows customers or end users to return defective products for repair or replacement, provided
that we are notified of the defective product generally within 90 days from delivery of the product to the end user in the case of
software, and up to one year in the case of hardware. Substantiaily all components, parts and subassemblies purchased by Voxware aj
covered by other manufacturer warranties for periods ranging from 30 days to one year from date of purchase by us.

Competition

We encounter competition from two primary sources. We experience direct competition from companies offering similar voice-base
solutions. Additionally, our solution competes with technologies that may be considered an alternative to voice-based solutions.

A Voxware-based voice solution integrates software, hardware, and service components. There are several alternative providers i
against whom we compete to market some or all of those components, The major competitor offering a similar solution is Vocollect,,
Inc., which markets a proprietary, wearable voice-based computer and complementary software. Vocollect, Inc. also indirectly sells
voice-based systems within the logistics and distribution market to resellers who also compete against us. in addition to Vocollect, In
and its resellers, there are other vendors who promote similar solutions, including Lucas Systems, Inc, FKI Logistex (a subsidiary of
FKI PLC), and TOPSystem Systemhaus GmbH. [n July 2005, FKI Logistex became a VAR reseller for us.

In each application area, there exist alternatives to voice-based solutions. Barcode scanning devices, for example, represent a
competitive alternative to voice-based products in certain warehouse picking applications. Thus, barcode product companies such as
Motorola, Intermec Technologies Corporation (a subsidiary of UNOVA, Inc.), LXE, and Psion Teklogix can be considered
competitors in the logistics and fulfillment marketptace, However, while these barcode product companies can sometimes be
competitors to us, we also have begun establishing formal relationships with several of these companies to provide potential customer
with complementary joint product offerings that integrate voice-based capabilities with alternative technologies. Likewise, in the
package sorting and remittance processing segments, keyboards are the most prevalent alternative along with an increasing use of
barcode scanning. Inspection, receiving, and inventory applications use keyboards as well, but often pen and paper comprise the
primary alternative method in those cases.

Factors considered by prospective customers evaluating competing voice-based logistics solutions include technical features and
functionality of the underlying hardware and software components, time required to deploy the solutions, quality and availability of
professional and support services, price, and ongoing total cost of ownership (TCQO). Hardware components are generally evaluated
based upon such factors as size, weight, processing speed and multi-modal functionality. Voxware-certified units compete against
Vocollect’s Talkman® series. During fiscal 2006 Vocollect introduced a new series of Talkman that was smaller in size than any of
our then-certified devices. Situations in which a customer valued size of the hardware above what we believe are more important
considerations put Voxware at a competitive disadvantage, but we believe this was mitigated in fiscal 2007 by other hardware
manufacturers offering products of similar size with expanded functionality beyond the Talkman series. Evaluations of competing
software solutions generally consider, among other factors, the breadth 6f applications supporting various warehouse operations,
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pport for different languages and warehouse management systems, and the portability, scalability and extensibility of the software.
eployment time is impacted primarily by the extent to which customized software development is required to implement the

lution. We believe our Voxware 3.0 solution, coupled with our VoxBrowser client software, is unique in the industry, and gives us
competitive advantage by reducing TCO because its open standards, web-based, people-centric design enables cross-platform
ortability, rapid deployment, and ease of application extension,

oice-based logistics applications offer real time updating of inventory systems, error checking capabilities to minimize picking
histakes, and hands-free communications allowing for easier handling of bulky or frozen products. Barcode scanning applications
ffer similar file update and error checking features, but lack the advantages of hands-free communication. Voice-based and barcode-
ased solutions both require substantially higher capital investments than paper-based and other low technology systems.

atents and Proprietary Information

oxware 3.0 is based on our VISE speech engine, which is a highly noise-tolerant, continuous speech recognizer. We believe it is the
rst speech recognizer to be engineered specifically for use in highly demanding industrial environments. Voxware 3.0, and all of our
ther voice-based products sold to industrial customers, are based on VISE technology.

Il Voxware-certified mobile devices, when deployed for a Voxware-based voice solution, incorporate an embedded version of our
ISE speech recognition engine with a standards-based interface that allows for interfaces with a wide variety of WMS packages.
oxware 3.0 also employs our patented invention of systems and methods for using standard Internet protocols in conjunction with
oiceXML Web pages to remotely program portable voice devices, such as our VoiceLogistics computer, that direct and guide users
rough defined tasks and work. The United States Patent and Trademark Office approved our application for patent protection of this
vention (Patent #6662163) in 2003.

e believe that owning and developing our core technologies represents a significant strategic and competitive advantage for us. We
ay, from time to time, file patent applications as deemed appropriate. Our success will depend in part on our ability to obtain patent
rotection for our products, preserve our trade secrets and operate without infringing the proprietary rights of other parties.

‘he software market has traditionally experienced widespread unauthorized reproduction of products in violation of manufacturers’
tellectual property rights. Such activity is difficult to detect and legal proceedings to enforce the manufacturers’ intellectual property
ights are often burdensome and involve a high degree of uncertainty and costs.

ur success is also dependent upon unpatented trade secrets, which are difficult to protect. To help protect our rights, we require
mployees and consultants to enter into confidentiality agreements that prohibit disclosure of our proprietary information, and require
e assignment to us of their ideas, developments, discoveries and inventions. We cannot assure you, however, that these agreements
ill provide adequate protection for our trade secrets, know-how, or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized

se or disclosures.

imployees

\s of June 30, 2007, we had 69 full-time employees and consultants, consisting of 23 individuals in cost of goods sold {which
ncludes professional services, customer support and production), 20 individuals in research and development, 16 individuals in sales
nd marketing, and 10 individuals in general and administrative. Twenty-nine of our employees are located at our Cambridge,
Aassachusetts facility, 22 individuals are located at cur corporate offices in Lawrenceville, New Jersey, 8 individuals work with our
ales and customer support office in the United Kingdom, and 10 individuals work elsewhere. None of our employees are represented
wy a labor union or are subject to a collective bargaining agreement. We believe we have good relations with our employees.

~orporate Information

Ve were incorporated on August 20, 1993 in the State of Delaware, Qur headquarters is located at Lawrenceville Office Park, 168
‘ranklin Corner Road, Lawrenceville, NJ (8648. Our telephone number is +1 609-514-4100.

Ne file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC, under the Securities Exchange Act
f 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. You may read and copy any materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
teference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, Y ou may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference
loom by calling the SEC at +1 800 SEC-0330. Our reports, proxy statements and other documents filed electronically with the SEC
re available at the website maintained by the SEC at http://www.sec.gov. In addition, we also make available free of charge on or
hrough our Internet website, http://www.voxware.com, our annual, quarterly and current reports, and, if applicable, amendments to
hose reports, filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after we
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electronically file such reports with the SEC. Copies of our SEC filings may also be obtained by calling our main number and asking
for investor relations or emailing: ir@voxware.com. Information on our website is not a part of this report. In addition, we make
available on our website (i) the charters for the committees of our Board of Directors, including the Audit Committee, Compensation
Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, and (ii) our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics governing our
directors, officers and employees. We intend to disclose on our website any amendments to, or waivers from, our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics that are required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and The
NASDAQ Stock Market,




isk Factors

e operate in a rapidly changing business environment that involves substantial risk and uncertainty. The following discussion
dresses some of the risks and uncertainties that could cause, or contribute to cause, actual results to differ materially from
pectations. We caution all readers to pay particular attention to the descriptions of risks and uncertainties described below and in
her sections of this report, and our other filings with the SEC.

any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely
fected. In such case, the trading price of our Common Stock could decline and we may be forced to consider additional alternatives.

is Report on Form 10-KSB contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, Qur actual results could differ
aterially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the risks described below
d elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

isks Relating to Qur Business and Operations

we continue to incur operating losses, we may be unable to continue our operations. We have incurred operating losses since

e started our company in August 1993. During the year ended June 30, 2007, the net loss applicable to common stackholders of
,936,000 contributed to an accumulated deficit of $75,325,000 as of June 30, 2007. [f we continue to incur operating losses and
nsistently fail to be a profitable company, we may be unable to continue our operations. In addition, we plan to continue to increase
ending on research and development, along with sales and marketing, at levels higher than in the recent past, and possibly
sproportionate to revenue, thus incurring net losses in the near term. Our future profitability depends on our ability to obtain
gnificant customers for our products, to identify, engage and support significant partners to sell our products, to respond to
hmpetition, to introduce new and enhanced products, and to successfully market and support our products. We cannot assure you that
e will achieve or sustain significant sales or profitability in the future.

we cannot raise adequate capital in the future, we may be unable to continue our product development, marketing and
siness, generally. We anticipate investing significant resources to fund future operations, including product development and
arketing. We may need to raise additional capital to fund future operations, Funding in the form of either debt or equity, from any
wirce, may not be available when needed or on faverable terms. If we cannot raise adequate funds to satisfy our capital requirements,
e may have to limit, delay, scale-back or eliminate product development programs, marketing or other activities. We might be forced
sell or license our technologies. Any of these actions might harm our business. If additional financing is obtained, the financing may
dilutive to our current stockholders.

Ve rely substantially on key customers. Our customer base is highly concentrated. One customer accounted for 22% of our total '
rvenues for the year ended June 30, 2007. We believe that a substantial portion of our net sales will continue to be derived from a
ncentrated group of customers. However, the volume of sales to a specific customer is likely to vary from period to period, and a
gnificant customer in one period may not purchase our products in a subsequent period. In general, there are no ongoing written
bmmitments by customers to purchase our products. Qur net sales in any period generally have been, and likely will continue to be,
 the near term, derived from a relatively small number of sales transactions. Therefore, the loss of one or more major customers, or a
'Flay in their orders, could have a material adverse affect on our results of operations.

Four VoiceLogistics family of products is not successful in the market, we will not be able to generate substantial revenues or
chieve sustained profitability. Our success is substantially dependent on the success of our VoiceLogistics family of products. If the
arket accepts our Voxware 3.0 products, these products will account for the vast majority of our net revenue in the future. If our
‘oxware 3.0 products are unsatisfactory, or if we are unable to generate significant demand for these products, or if we fail to develop
ther significant products or applications, our business will be materially and adversely affected.

Ye have a sole source vendor for our primary hardware products. Effective in the second quarter of fiscal 2006, one vendor
upplies us with our primary wearable computer hardware product. Any disruption in supply by this vendor would prohibit us from
hipping our products, and thus recognizing revenue. In addition, other vendors provide custom-made components that would take
me to reproduce with other suppliers should a current vendeor fail to deliver quality product in a timely manner.

Ve are relying on third-party hardware manufacturers to develop and bring to market portable voice-compatible computer
quipment on which to run our software. Sales of our Voxware 3.0 and VoxBrowser software products depend, in part, upon the
elivery by third-party hardware manufacturers of robust Voxware-certified mobile computing devices with sufficient memory, voice
apabilities and form factor. While we anticipate the entrance of additional Voxware-certified devices in the marketplace in the

1ture, our customers seeking best-of-breed hardware units to drive our software currently have a limited selection from which to
hoose. We cannot assure you that third-party manufacturers will develop and market hardware units compatible with our software on
timely basis, if at all.




If we do not develop or acquire and introduce new and enhanced products on a timely basis, our products may be rendered
obsolete. The markets for our speech recognition products and voice-based technologies are characterized by rapidly changing
technology. The introduction of products by others based on new or more advanced technologies could render our products obsolete
and unmarketable. Therefore, our ability to build on our existing technologies and products to develop and introduce new and
enhanced products in a cost effective and timely manner will be a critical factor in our ability to grow and compete. We cannot assure
you that we will develop new or enhanced products successfully and bring them to market in a timely manner. Further, we cannot
assure you that the market will accept new or enhanced products. Our failure to develop new or enhanced products, including our
failure to develop or acquire the technology necessary to do so, would have a material adverse effect on our business.

If our competitors introduce better or less expensive products, our products may not be profitable to sell or to continue to
develop. The business in which we engage is highly competitive. Advances in technology, product improvements and new product
introductions, as well as marketing and distribution capabilities, and price competition influence success. Failure to keep pace with
product and technological advances could adversely affect our competitive position and prospects for growth. Our products compete
with those being offered by larger, traditional computer industry participants who have substantially greater financial, technical,
marketing and manufacturing resources than we do. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully against these
competitors, or that competitive pressures faced by us would not adversely affect our business or operating results.

if we cannot integrate our speech recognition products with other components of customer systems, we may not be able to sell
our products. Although state-of-the-art speech recognition technology is important to generating sales in our target markets, other
components of a voice-based system are also necessary. Our products must be easily integrated with customers’ asset management
and information systems. The ability to incorporate speech recognition products into customers’ systems, quickly and without
excessive cost or disruption, will be a key factor in our success. We do not now possess all the necessary components for system
integration. Acquisitions, joint ventures or other strategic relationships may be required for us to develop or obtain access to the
necessary components to achieve market penetration. The development of strategic relationships with other software vendors can be a,
lengthy process as potential partners evaluate the benefit to their business of integrating voice-based solutions, and in particular, our
software, into their product offerings. We cannot assure you that our efforts will be successful and, to the extent we are unsuccessful,
our business may be materially adversely affected. |
|
I

There are a number of factors which may cause substantial variability in our quarterly operating results. Qur revenue, gross
profit, operating income or loss, and net income or loss, may vary substantially from quarter-to-quarter due to a number of factors.
Many factors, some of which are not within our control, may contribute to fluctuations in operating results. These factors include, but
are not limited to, the following:

market acceptance of our products;

timing and levels of purchases by customers;

interruption and delays in production caused by vendor delays;

new product and service introductions by our competitors or us; '

market factors affecting the availability or cost of qualified technical personnel; |

timing and customer acceptance of our new product and service offerings; i

effectiveness of sales efforts by third-party partners; !

length of sales cycle; I
|
|

introduction and application of new generally accepted accounting principles; and
industry and general economic conditions.

e & & & & & & 0 8

We cannot assure you that any of these factors will not substantially influence our quarterly operating results.

If our third-party partners do not effectively market and service our products, we may not generate significant revenues or
profits from sales of our products. We utilize third parties, such as hardware system vendors, WMS companies, distributors,
consultants, value added reseliers, and system integrators, to sell and/or assist us in selling our products. To date we have signed |
agreements with several of these third-party partners, and we expect these partners to contribute an increasing percentage of overall
revenues in the future. We believe that the establishment of a network of third-party partners, with extensive and specific knowledge
of the various applications critical in the industrial market, is important for us to succeed in that market. Some third-party partners alsc
purchase products from us at a discount and incorporate them into application systems for various target markets, and/or consult us in
the development of application systems for end users. Once signed, new partners must be trained in the development and sale of
voice-based logistics solutions. Accordingly, there can be a significant lead time between the signing of agreements with partners and
the recognition of revenues generated by the partners. For the foreseeable future, we may sell fewer products if we cannot attract and
retain third-party partners to sell and service our products effectively and provide timely and cost-effective customer support. An
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creasing number of companies compete for access to the types of partners we use. Additionally, we may experience conflicts
tween our distribution channel partners who may compete against one another. Our sales may suffer as a result of these conflicts.

ither party generally may terminate our current arrangements with third-party partners at any time upon 30 days prior written notice.
¢ cannot assure you that our partners will continue to purchase and re-setl our products, or provide us with adequate levels of
pport. If our partner relationships are terminated or otherwise disrupted, our operating performance and financial results may be
versely affected.

we cannot attract and retain management and other personnel with experience in the areas of cur business focus, we will not
e able to manage and grow our business. We have been developing and selling our speech recognition products and voice-based
chnologies since February 1999. Since that time, we have been hiring personnel with skills and experience relevant to the

velopment and sale of these products and technologies. [f we cannot continue to hire such personnel and to retain personnel hired,

r ability to operate our business will be materially adversely affected. On June 30, 2006, the Company accelerated the vesting of
tstanding stock options to all of its employees, thereby eliminating a possible reason for employees to remain with the Company.

s of June 30, 2007, 403,595 options to purchase shares of our Common Stock were available for grant to employees. Competition

r qualified personnel is intense, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to attract, assimilate or retain qualified personnel.

the export of our technology is deemed a violation of the regulations of the United States Department of Commerce, Bureau

Industry and Security, our business will be substantially harmed. The Bureau of Industry and Security, or BIS, oversees

plementation and enforcement of the Export Administration Regulations, or EAR, which control the export of most commercial
ems. The BIS regulates "dual-use” items that have both commercial and military or proliferation applications, however, purely
mmercial items without an obvious military use are also subject to the EAR. The EAR prohibit the export of certain technologies,
hile the export of other technologies is restricted in certain geographical regions or to certain entities. Exporters deemed in violation
f the EAR are subject to substantial penalties. We are developing international channels for the distribution of our speech recognition
d voice-based technology, and anticipate increasing our dependence upon revenue derived from foreign sources. If some or all of

r products are classified as a restricted technology under the EAR, our ability to generate revenue from international sources wiil be
aterially adversely affected.

we cannot protect our proprietary rights and trade secrets, or if we are found to be infringing on the patents and
roprietary rights of others, our business would be substantially harmed. Our success depends in part on our ability to protect the
oprietary nature of our products, preserve our trade secrets, and operate without infringing upon the proprietary rights of others. If
hers obtain and copy our technology, or claim that we are making unauthorized use of their proprietary technology, we may become
volved in lengthy and costly disputes to resolve questions of ownership of the technology. If we are found to be infringing on the
oprietary rights of others, we could be required to seck licenses to use necessary technelogy. We cannot assure you that licenses of
ird-party patents or proprietary rights would be made available to us on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, the laws of certain
untries may not protect our intellectual property because the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the
me extent as the laws of the United States, and many companies have encountered significant problems and costs in protecting their
roprietary rights in these foreign countries. To protect our proprietary rights, we seek patents and we enter into confidentiality
reements with our employees and consultants with respect to proprietary rights and unpatented trade secrets. We cannot assure you
ose patent applications in which we hold rights will result in the issuance of patents. We cannot assure you that any issued patents
ill provide significant protection for our technology and products. In addition, we cannot assure you that others will not
dependently develop competing technologies that are not covered by our patents. We cannot assure you that confidentiality
reements will provide adequate protection for our trade secrets, know-how, or other proprietary information in the event of any
nauthorized use or disclosures, Any unauthorized disclosure and use of our proprietary technology could have a material adverse
ffect on our business.

isks Relating to Qur Securities
'he price of our Common Stock has been highly volatile due to factors that will continue to affect the price of our stock. Our

‘ommon Stock traded as high as $8.86 and as low as $1.83 per share between July 1, 2006 and June 30, 2007. Historically, the over-
1e-counter markets and NASDAQ Capital Market for securities such as our Common Stock have experienced extreme price
uctuations. Some of the factors leading to this volatility include:

fluctuations in our quarterly revenue and operating results;

announcements of product releases by us or our competitors;

announcements of acquisitions and/or partnerships by us or our competitors;

increases in outstanding shares of our Common Stock upon exercise or conversion of derivative securities, and the issuances
of our Commen Stock pursuant to our private placement transactions;

delays in producing finished goods inventory for shipment; and

the small public float of our outstanding Common Stock in the marketplace.

»
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There is no assurance that the price of our Common Stock will not continue to be volatile in the future.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shares of Common Stock may be sold in the market in the near future. This
could cause the market price of our Common Stock to drop significantly, even if our business is doing well. Sales of a
substantial number of shares of our Common Stock in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the
market of such sales, may have a material adverse effect on the market price of our Common Stock. On October 25, 2005, we
registered 1,084,383,899 shares (7,229,226 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock, including an aggregate
of 193,070,922 shares (1,287,139 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of
warrants. We also previously registered all shares of Common Stock that we may issue under our employee benefit plans. Sales of
outstanding shares, when sold, could reduce the market price of our Common Stock.

Future sales of our Common Stock in the public market could adversely affect the price of our Common Stock. Sales in the
public market of substantial amounts of our Common Stock that are not currently freely tradable, or even the potential for such sales,
could impair the ability of our stockholders to recoup their investment or make a profit. As of August 31, 2007, these shares include:

* approximately 131,460 shares of our Common Stock owned by our executive officers and directors; and
e approximately 1,752,830 shares of our Common Stock issuable to warrant holders and option holders, which may be sold
under various prospectuses filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act.

The sale of substantial amounts of our Commeon Stock by certain affiliates, including our largest stockholders, or the sale of
substantial amounts of our Common Stock received through the exercise of outstanding options and/or warrants, or the perception of
such sales, may have a material adverse effect on our stock price.

If the holders of the warrants and options to purchase our Common Stock elect to have their collective holdings assumed by a potentia
acquirer of us, the potential acquirer could be deterred from completing the acquisition. Also, if the holders of the warrants and
options to purchase our Common Stock elect to have their holdings remain outstanding after an acquisition of us, the potential
acquirer could be deterred from completing the acquisition.

Our management and other affiliates have significant control of our Commen Stock and could control our actions in a mannes
that conflicts with our interests and the interests of other stockholders. As of August 31, 2007, our executive officers, directors
and affiliated entities together beneficially own approximately 5,644,223 shares of our Common Stock, assuming the exercise of
options, warrants and other Common Stock equivalents, which are currently exercisable, held by these stockholders. As a result, these
stockholdets, acting together, will be able to exercise considerable influence over matters requiring approval by our stockholders,
including the election of directors, and may not always act in the best interests of other stockholders. Such a concentration of
ownership may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in our control, including transactions in which our stockholders
might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current market prices.

If we are unable to maintain our listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market, the marketability of our Common Stock could be
adversely affected. Qur Common Stock is currently listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “VOXW?”. In order fo
our Commen Stock to continue trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market, we must meet certain minimum financial requirements.
Among other requirements, the minimum bid price of our Common Stock must remain at least $1.00 per share and the market value o
publicly held shares, as defined by the NASDAQ Capital Market, must remain at least $1,000,000. In addition, we must continue to
meet at least one of the following three requirements:

+  Stockholders® equity must be at least $2,500,000;
e Market value of our Common Stock must be at least $35,000,000; or
s Net income from continuing operations must be at least $500,000.

While we satisfy the requirements for continued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market as of June 30, 2007, continued periods of
operating losses may adversely affect our ability to maintain minimum required values of stockholders’ equity or Common Stock
market value. If we are unable to satisfy the criteria to maintain listing of our Common Stock, our Common Stock could be subject to
delisting. Trading, if any, of our Common Stock would thereafter be conducted on the OTC Bulletin Board or in the so-called “Pink
Sheets”. As a consequence, it would be far more difficult for our stockholders to trade in our Common Stock and it may be more
difficult to obtain accurate and current information concerning market prices for our Common Stock.

Risks Relating to Accounting Rules and Internal Controls
Changes in, or interpretations of, accounting rules and regulations, such as expensing of stock options, could result in
unfavorable accounting charges. We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
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enerally accepted in the United States of America. These principles are subject to interpretation by the SEC and various bodies
rmed to interpret and create appropriate accounting policies. A change in these policies can have a significant effect on our reported
sults, and may even retroactively affect previously reported transactions. Qur accounting policies that recently have been, or may

e, affected by changes in the accounting rules are as follows:

*  revenue recognition;
s accounting for share-based payments; and
+ accounting for income taxes.

particular, the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, began implementing a new interpretation of section 409A of the Internal Revenue
ode, or Section 409A, effective January 1, 2005. In April 2007, the IRS issued final regulations on the treatment of nonqualified
eferred compensation plans and arrangements under Section 4094, including stock options. Affected plans and arrangements are
quired to comply with documentation requirements established in the final regulations by December 31, 2007,

ection 409A requires the withholding of taxes from employees as vesting occurs on options that are issued below fair market value,
FMV. The default position of the IRS is that for a publicly traded company, its trading value is its FMV. In the past, we issued
ock options at what we believe was FMV, however these prices at times varied from the trading value on the OTC Bulletin Board
ue to the highly volatile nature of the stock price. Accordingly, we have taken share-based compensation charges on our books, but
ave not withheld taxes from our employees as their options vest, In order to achieve compliance with section 409A by December 31,
007, we anticipate undertaking a tender offer through which we will cancel options granted to employees to purchase 136,531 shares
f our Comrion Stock with exercise prices less than the closing trading value of our Common Stock of the date of issuance. We are
ill evaluating the impact, if any, the cancellation and reissuance of stock options will have on our share based compensation charges
lculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, Statement 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”. We
ticipate the cancelled stock options will be replaced by an equat number of options with exercise prices calculated as the lower of
e closing trading price of our Common Stock on the date of tender offer or original grant date. To the extent that the exercise price
f the options increases, it is likely we will offer a retention bonus to the affected employees calculated as the increased cost to the
ployees of exercising the options, The bonus will be payable to those individuals who remain employed by the company for the
uration of the vesting period. The maximum bonus, assuming none of the affected employees terminate their employment prior to
e end of the vesting period, is estimated at approximately $168,000, which will be accrued ratably over the vesting period.

June 2006, FASB issued Interpretation No 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an Interpretation of FASB Statement
0. 109", or FIN 48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in
cordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
r the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is
ffective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a material impact on our
ported financial results.

September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements", or SFAS 157. SFAS 157 defines fair value,
stablishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, SFAS 157 does not require
ew fair value measurements. We are required to adopt SFAS 157 as of July 1, 2008, and have not yet determined the impact that the
doption of SFAS 157 will have on our reported financial results.

February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities", or SFAS
59. SFAS 159 defines fair value, permits optional fair value reporting of certain assets and liabilities in lieu of historical cost
porting, We are required to adopt SFAS 159 as of July 1, 2008, and have not yet determined the impact that the adoption of SFAS
59 will have on our reported financial results.

EM2. PROPERTIES.

ffective July 1, 20400, we entered into a lease for our headquarters facility, which contains approximately 4,000 square feet of office
pace in Lawrenceville, New Jersey, The initial term of this lease expired on June 30, 2003, but has been extended through December
1,2007. On July 27, 2005, the lease was amended to include an additional 1,350 square feet. Payments under this lease consist of a
ase rent of $19.00 per square foot through December 31, 2004, $19.76 per square foot from January 1, 2005 to November 30, 2005,
20.29 per square foot from December 1, 2005 through December 31, 2006, and $21.40 per square foot thereafier. Beginning in 2005,
1¢ lease requires us to pay for escalations in property operating expenses, property taxes and other items. In conjunction with the
xpiration of the lease for our Lawrenceville, New Jersey headquarters, we anticipate leasing additionat space to accomodate our
rowing needs during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008,
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Qur principal facility, which is located in Cambridge, Massachusetts, contains approximately 9,500 square feet of office space. We
lease this space for research and development, customer support, professional services, product engineering, and final assembly and
testing. Total payments under this lease consist of a base rent of $27.00 per square foot, an electricity charge of $1.50 per square foot,
and an expense charge of 14.9% of the landlord’s building expenses. On October 1, 2003, the base rent was reduced to $20.00 per
square foot. The original term for the lease of this office space expired on June 30, 2007, but was extended through July 31, 2007.
Subsequent to June 30, 2007, we moved our Cambridge operations into a new facility. Under the new lease agreement, we are leasing
approximately 7,600 square feet of office space through August 31, 2012. Total payments under the lease consist of a base rent,
which increases annually, and an expense charge of 3.03% of the landlord’s building expenses. The initial base rent is $17.00 per
square foot for the first year of the lease. Thereafter, the base rent will increase by $1.00 per square foot on the anniversary of the
lease commencement date.

Our Reading, England facility serves as a sales and service office for our customers based in the United Kingdom. In June 2004, we
leased a temporary office consisting of approximately 400 square feet. The initial lease term expired in June 2005, but renewed
automatically in three-month increments until terminated in writing. We were obligated to pay minimum lease payments of
approximately £2,250 per month, plus a pro rata share of operating expenses for the building. On November 22, 2006, we enteted intg
a new 10 year lease of an office consisting of approximately 1,000 square feet. Under the lease terms, we have options to terminate
the lease without penalty after three and five years. Minimum rent payments of £1,713.54 per month commenced on March 1, 2007.
The minimum monthly lease payment increases to £1,762.50 on March 1, 2008. In the event we opt to continue the lease beyond the
third year, the minimum monthly lease payment increases to £1,860.42 on March 1, 2009.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, which arise in the ordinary course of business.
While the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that the outcome of any of these legal matters
will have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results or financial condition.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

Not applicable.
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PART II

FEMS. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND SMALL BUSINESS
ISSUER’S PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

farket Information

rom March 1, 2001 through December 11, 2005, our Common Stock traded on the NASDAQ OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol
OXW.ob. From December 12, 2005 through March 19, 2006, our Common Stock was traded on the NASDAQ OTC Bulletin Board
hder the symbol VXWR.ob after giving effect to the 1-for-150 reverse split of all the outstanding shares of our Common Stock, or

e Reverse Split. On March 20, 2006, our Common Stock began trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol VOXW.
he following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share, after adjustment for Reverse Split, as quoted on the NASDAQ
TC Bulletin Board and NASDAQ Capital Market for our two most recent fiscal years:

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Quarter ended September 30, 2005 § 16500 $  6.000

Quarter ended December 31, 2005 § 10.500 § 4220

Quarter ended March 31, 2006 $ 7500 $ 4880

Quarter ended June 30, 2006 $ 7250 $ 4150
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Quarter ended September 30, 2006 $ 7.000 $ 3.800

Quarter ended December 31, 2006 $ 5590 $ 3.000

Quarter ended March 31, 2007 § 5250 $ 2.040

Quarter ended June 30, 2007 $ B8.860 £ 1.830

s of June 30, 2007, there were approximately 114 holders of record of our Commen Stock. We have never declared nor paid any
1sh dividends on our Common Stock. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

quity Compensation Plan Information

he following table provides information as of June 30, 2007, with respect to the shares of our Common Stock that may be issued
der our existing equity compensation plans.

|
Number of
Securities
Number o f Securities Weighted Available for
to be Issued Upon Average Future Issuance
_ Exercise of Exercise Price of under Equity
Outstanding Options Outstanding Compensation
Plan Category (1) Options Plans (2)
)03 Stock Incentive Plan 593,771 $4.31 402,695
P94 Stock Option Plan 2,669 $253.49 0
J98 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors 0 -- 900

)} Reflects 1-for-150 reverse stock split effectuated December 12, 2003,

'} Shares reserved for issuance under the plan may be issued upon the exercise of stock options or through direct stock issuances
which vest upon the completion of designated service periods or the attainment of prescribed performance goals.

rale of Unregistered Securities
:one.
urchase of Equity Securities by the Small Business Issuer and Affiliated Purchases

one.
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ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS.

This report contains forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to certain factors that may cause our plans to differ, or
results to vary from those expected, including:

¢ our evolving distribution strategy and increasing dependence on third-party distribution channels and hardware
manufacturers;

» the risks associated with our need to introduce new and enhanced products and services in order to increase market
penetration;

e the risk of obsolescence of our products and services due to technological change;

*  our need to attract and retain key management and other personnel with experience in providing integrated voice-based
solutions for logistics, specializing in the supply chain sector;
the potential for substantial fluctuations in our results of operations;
competition from others;

» the potential that voice-based products will not be widely accepted; and

e  a variety of risks set forth from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC.

We underiake no obligation to publicly release results of any of these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events
or circumstances after the date hereof, or to reflect the occurrences of unexpected results.

Overview

We are a leading provider of voice-based technology that helps optimize the activities of warehouse and other logistics workers by
providing real-time wireless connections between warehouse workers and logistics management sofutions. Utilizing our leading
speech recognition capabilities, we enable logistics management software and systems to streamline and enhance the accuracy and
productivity of warehouse workers in performing repetitive, high-volume, labor-intensive tasks, including picking, receiving, put
away, replenishment, loading, and returns processing. Our voice-enabled solutions provide customers the ability to reduce logistics
costs and optimize complex materials handling processes through the delivery of voice prompts and responses that can be tailored to
individual customer requirements. We generate revenues primarily from hardware product sales, software license fees, professional
services and maintenance fees.

The VoiceLogistics® solution, or VLS, is a combination of software, hardware and professional services available through two
productized offerings. Our current flagship product, Voxware 3.0™, is a suite of tools enabling non-programmers to design, develop
and integrate voice-based logistics solutions. VoiceLogistics Express™, or VLE, is a standard application suite for enhancing
distribution center workforce performance for a variety of logistics functions. While we continue to deliver and support both
solutions, our marketing and development efforts are focused primarily on Voxware 3.0. Our VoxBrowser software offers our
patented combination of powerful speech recognition software in VoiceXML compliant web browser technology. This is client
software designed to run on a wide variety of industry-standard mobile computers devised for demanding warehouse environments.
These serve as the basis for the dynamic real-time link between highly mobile logistics workers, the warehouse management system,
or WMS, and supervisory personnel. We believe that our solution is unique in the industry because it is the first open standards, webs
based, people-centric, interactive speech recognition technology designed to VoiceXML standards, and is engineered specifically to
operate in highly demanding industrial environments. VoxBrowser allows for the development and deployment of voice-based
logistics solutions independent of the hardware platform on which it operates.

We seil VoiceLogistics primarily to large companies that operate warehouses and distribution centers in North America and Europe.
We have customers from a variety of industry sectors, including food service, grocery, retail, consumer packaged goods, automotive
parts, third-party logistics providers and wholesale distribution. Our technology has the ability to integrate easily (generally in less
than 60 days) with an external WMS,

Historically, our sales were generated primarily by our own sales force working directly with the end users of the VoiceLogistics
solution. During our 2005 fiscal year, we made the decision to transition from direct selling of custom solutions that included
proprietary hardware and software to the sale, through partners, of productized, standards-based voice software that operates on open
hardware platforms. Our transition to this sales approach and technology is an ongoing process that will continue in the future.

As part of our business transition, we stopped manufacturing our own proprietary hardware, and instead have partnered with major
mobile computing equipment manufacturers such as Motorola, Inc. and LXE, Inc., a subsidiary of EMS Technologies, Inc. One
implication of this strategy is that we expect the portion of our revenue associated with proprietary hardware sales will diminish over
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ime as we transition to a software-centric business model, although we can provide no assurance as to the rate of this anticipated shift
f revenue sources.

t the same time we have developed partnerships with key value added reseller, or VAR, and WMS companies, both in the United
tates and in international markets, who are incorporating our voice technology, most notably our Voxware 3.0 product, into their
fferings. The first deliveries of solutions by partners to end customers have occurred. However, we believe it takes on average a
ear or more before significant revenues are generated by these partnerships, because partners must complete product integration
fforts, become certified to deliver Voxware-based voice solutions, and secure customer acceptance of their initial deployments.

elected Financial Data

he selected statement of operations data for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the selected balance sheet data as of
une 30, 2007 and 2006, have been derived from our audited financial statements, which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report
n Form 10-KSB. The selected statements of operations data for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and the balance
heet data as of June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, have been derived from our audited financial statements not included herein. The
elected statement of operations data set forth below should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
esults of Operations and Financial Condition and the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report
n Form 10-KSB.

Year Ended June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
{In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Total revenues
Total cost of revenues
Net loss attributable to common
stockholders 3 (7.644) § (10,326) % (1456) § (6,843) 8§ (1,936)
Net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders - basic and
diluted by (46.99) § (43.86) $ (3.78) b (1.22) % (0.31)
Weighted average number of shares :
used in computing net loss per
common share-basic and diluted,

o
(=5
o5

8,392
4,342

11,650
7,669

17,502 h3 15,478 $ 15,420
8,065 3 7,445 b 6,498

&
&5
o5

adjusted for reverse split : 163 235 386 5,596 6,292
As of June 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents, cash held in
attorney's escrow account, and

short term investments b 4247 3 1,124 $ 3,639 $ 6,909 $ 4,961
Working capital (deficit) $ 2,550 h) (1,942 § 604 $ 4,005 5 3,281
Total assets $ 8,847 $ 5,413 $ 7.414 $ 10,646 b 12,132
Long-term debt $ 38 b 1,013 $ 334 $ 253 h 941
Stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 3,772 3 (2,241) % 810 $ 4,327 $ 2,752

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported in our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. However, future events are subject to change, and
he best estimates and judgments routinely require adjustment. The amounts of assets and liabilities reported in our consolidated
halance sheets, and the amounts of revenues and expenses reported for each of our fiscal periods, are affected by estimates and
1ssumptions which are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for allowance for doubtful accounts, warranty costs, impairments,
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inventory, share-based compensation and income taxes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The fotlowing critical
accounting policies are significantly affected by judgments, assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.

Revenues

Revenues are generated from licensing application sofiware, selling related computer hardware and providing services, including
professional deployment, configuration, customized application development, and training services, and software maintenance and
technical support services.

Product revenue consists of software license fees, sales of related computer hardware, and extended hardware warranties. Revenue
from the licensing of software and sale of hardware is recognized when (i) a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of an [
arrangement exists; (ii) the product has been shipped or electronically delivered; (iii) the license fee or hardware price is fixed and
determinable; and (iv) collection of the resulting receivable is probable. This generally occurs upon shipment of software and '
hardware, or completion of the implementation, if applicable, provided collection is determined to be probable and there are no
significant post-delivery obligations. If an acceptance period is required to ensure satisfactory delivery of the application software
solution, as may occur for the initial site implementation for new direct-sales customers, revenues are recognized upon customer i
acceptance. Agreements with channel partners and some direct customers do not inctude an acceptance period, so revenues from the |
sale of hardware and licensing of software in these transactions are recognized upon shipment. Extended hardware warranty revenue |
is recognized ratably over the life of the contract, generally one year.

Services revenue consists of professional deployment, configuration, customized application development, and training services, and
software maintenance and technical support services. Professional services revenue is generally recognized as the services are :
performed. For arrangements in which professional services are provided in conjunction with software, professional services revenue|
for services provided prior to delivery of software is deferred until delivery of all software. Revenue from maintenance and technical
support, which typically consist of unspecified when-and-if-available product updates and customer telephone support services, is
recognized ratably over the term of the service period, which is generally one year.

We recognize revenue in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position, or SOP, No. '
97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, as amended by SOP No. 98 9. SOP 97-2, as amended, requires that revenue recognized from
multiple element arrangements that include software licenses be allocated to the various elements of the arrangement based on the
relative fair vatues of the elements, such as hardware, deployment services, and maintenance and technical support services. We ,
follow the residual method of accounting under SOP 97-2, as amended. Under the residual method, the aggregate arrangement fee is i
allocated to each of the undelivered elements in an amount equal to their fair values, with the residual arrangement fee allocated to the
delivered elements. The relative fair value of the undelivered elements included in cur muiti-element sales arrangements is based on
vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE.

VSOE exists for hardware elements sold separately. We determine VSOE of the fair values of maintenance and technical support
based on annual renewal rates provided 1o customers and for professional services based on standard hourly rates when such services
are provided on a stand-alone basis. As of June 30, 2007, we believe that we have realized VSOE of the fair values for maintenance
and professional services.

We continue to generate royalty revenues from our legacy speech coding technology business, which was sold in 1999. Royalties are
eamed on technologies our customers incorporate into their products for resale. Revenues are recognized at the time of the customers
shipment of those products, as estimated based upon historical reports received periodically from our customers. If our customers’
business operations change dramatically, our actual royatty revenues earned could differ substantiatly from our estimates.

Trave! costs associated with professional services and billed to customers are recorded as services revenues at the time they are
incurred.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of unearned customer deposits and PCS arrangements. Customer deposits are recognized as revenue upon
delivery of the underlying product and services in conjunction with the recognition of deferred project costs, PCS arrangements
include extended hardware warranty, software maintenance revenues and depot management service fees. These arrangements, which
sometimes include amounts bundled with initial revenues, are deferred upon invoicing and recognized as revenue over the term of the
warranty or service period, which is typically one year.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the collectibility of specific customer accounts and an assessment
of international and economic risk, as well as the aging of the accounts receivable. If there is a change in a major customer’s credit
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orthiness or if actual defaults differ from our historical experience, our estimates of recoverability of amounts due us could be
ffected.

esearch and Development

esearch and development expenditures are charged to operations as incurred. Pursuant to SFAS No. 86, "Accounting for the Cost of
omputer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed", development costs incurred in connection with the research and
evelopment of software products and enhancements to existing software products are charged 1o expense as incurred until
cchnological feasibility has been established, at which time such costs are capitalized until the product is available for general release
o customers. Technological feasibility is achieved substantially at the time the software is released for general sale to our customers.

Varranty Costs
We accrue for warranty costs based on our estimate of expected repair cost per unit, service policies and specific known issues. If we

xperience claims or significant changes in costs of services, such as third-party vendor charges, materials or freight, which could be
igher or lower than our historical experience, our cost of revenues could be affected.

nventory
mventory purchases and purchase commitments are based upon forecasts of future demand. We value our inventory at the lower of

verage cost or market. If we believe that demand no longer allows us to sell our inventory above cost, or at all, then we write down
hat inventory to market or write off excess inventory levels, If customer demand subsequently differs from our forecasts,
equirements for inventory write-offs could differ from our estimates.

hare-based Compensation

uring fiscal 2006 and prior years, we accounted for stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
r APB 25, and disclosed the pro forma effect of expensing stock options in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
tandards, or SFAS, No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”. Effective July 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment”, an amendment of SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No. 95, which requires all companies to measure compensation
ost for all share-based payments, including employee stock options, at fair value. Both SFAS 123 and SFAS 123(R) require
anagement to make assumptions regarding the expected life of the options, the expected volatility of the options and other items in
letermining estimated fair value. Changes to the underlying assumptions may have significant impact on the underlying value of the
tock options, which could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

eferred Taxes

Dur deferred tax assets represent net operating loss carry-forwards and temporary differences that will result in deductible amounts in
uture years if we have taxable income. We have established a 100% valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets based on
stimates and certain tax planning strategies. The carrying value of our net deferred tax assets assumes that it is more likely than not
hat we will not be able to utilize the benefit of these tax assets to offset future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions. If these
stimates and related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to adjust the valuation allowance in future years.

Jur key accounting estimates and policies are reviewed with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

)ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Ve do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
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Results of Operations

Fiscal 2007 Versus Fiscal 2006

Year Ended % of Total Year Ended % of Total

June 30, 2007 Revenue June 30, 2006 Revenue 3 Change % Change
Product revenues 3 11,566 75% 8 11,922 77% 5 (356} . (3%)
Services revenues 3,854 25% 3,556 23% 298 8%
Total revenues 15,420 100% 15,478 100% (58) (0%)
Cost of product revenues 3,785 25% 3,965 26% {180} (5%)
Cost of service revenues 2,713 18% 3,480 22% (767) (22%)
Total cost of revenues 6,498 42% 7,445 48% (947) (13%)
Gross profit 8,922 58% 8,033 52% 889 11%
Research and development 2,783 18% 3,457 22% (674) (19%)
Sales and marketing 5,394 35% 5,463 35% (69) (1%)
General and administrative 2,718 18% 6,059 39% (3,341) (55%)
Total operating expenses 10,895 71% 14,979 97% (4,084) (27%)
Operating loss (1,973) (13%) (6,946) {45%) 4,973 2%
Interest income (expense), net 37 0% (45) (0%) 82 182%
Loss before income taxes (1,936) (13%) (6,991) (45%) 5,055 72%
Benefit from income taxes - 0% 228 1% (228) (100%%)
Net loss 3 (1,936) (13%) % (6,763) (44%) 8§ 4,827 71%

Revenues

Our total revenues were $15,420,000 for the year ended June 30, 2007 compared to total revenues of $15,478,000 for the year ended
June 30, 2006. The $58,000 (0%) decrease in total revenues is primarily due to a decrease of $1,047,000 (15%) in the sale of hardwar
units and related accessories partially offset by increases of $540,000 (32%) in softiware maintenance revenues, $518,000 (56%) in
extended hardware warranty revenues, and $225,000 (6%) in licensing of software. Product revenues accounted for 75% of revenues
during the year ended June 30, 2007 as compared to 77% during the year ended June 30, 2006. Service revenues accounted for 25%
of revenue during the year ended June 30, 2007 as compared to 23% during the prior year.

Product revenues include licensing of VLS software, sales of hardware units and accessories, extended hardware warranty, and
royalties from our speech compression technology. Total product revenues decreased $356,000 (3%) to $11,566,000 during the year
ended June 30, 2007, from $11,922,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006. The decrease in product revenues during the year ended
June 30, 2007 was primarily due to a 24% decrease in the number of hardware unit sold compared to the year ended June 30, 2006,
offset by increases in software revenues and extended hardware warranty revenues. The decrease in number of hardware unit
upgrades sold was primarily due to several significant one-time hardware upgrade purchases in fiscal year 2006 by long time
customers combined with the greater availability of hardware manufactured by independent third party companies that are certified to
run our software. As a result of the introduction of VoxBrowser and Voxware 3.0 products, which are not dependent on our
proprietary hardware platform, we anticipate that software licenses will account for a greater percentage of product revenues in the
future, with less emphasis on sales of new or upgraded hardware units. Software licenses contributed 32% of product revenues durin&
the year ended June 30, 2007 as compared to 29% during the prior year.

Services revenues are derived from professional services fees relating to voice-based solutions, ongoing customer support activities,
and travel charges billed to customers for costs incurred while providing services. For the year ended June 30, 2007, services
revenues totaled $3,854,000, an increase of $298,000 (8%) from services revenues of §3,556,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006.
Professional services decreased $252,000 (13%) from $1,877,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006 to $1,625,000 during the year
ended June 30, 2007, reflecting the reduced service effort required to deploy the Voxware 3.0 software product. Additionally,
Voxware 3.0 provides tools to allow third-party partners to develop voice-enabled logistics solutions independent of our professional
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ervices staff. As a result, we expect professional services revenues for new customers to decline in the future. Software maintenance
upport services increased $540,000 (32%) from $1,679,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006 to $2,219,000 during the year ended
une 30, 2607. Revenues from software maintenance support services tend to grow over time as additional sofiware licenses are sold.
illed travel costs decreased $64,000 (27%) to $174,000 during the year ended June 30, 2007 from $238,000 during the year ended
une 30, 2006. The decrease in billed travel costs reflects the shift in focus away from our older products that required greater on-site
upport services to customize and implement.

ost of Revenues

otal cost of revenues decreased $947,000 (13%) from $7,445,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 to $6,498,000 for the fiscal
ear ended June 30, 2007,

ost of product revenues decreased $180,000 (5%) from $3,965,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006, to $3,785,000 in the year ended
une 30, 2007. Such costs reflect materials, labor and overhead associated with the sale of our voice-based products. Included in our
ost of product revenues is our manufacturing staff, which was comprised of 3 individuals as of June 30, 2007, as compared to 5

dividuals as of June 30, 2006. The decrease in cost of product revenues is primarily attributable to a decrease of $205,000 for labor
elated costs during the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to the year ended June 30, 2006 due to the reduction of staff during
iscal 2007. This decrease was partially offset by an increase of $65,000 for direct material costs, which was primarily due to higher
osts per unit during fiscal year 2007 as compared to fiscal year 2006. We expect software licensing to account for a higher
ercentage of product revenues in the future. Accordingly, cost of product revenues, as a percentage of product revenues, may
radually decline, so that our margins earned on product revenues may increase. However, such increases in gross margin percentages
ay be offset if end users seek to purchase third-party hardware directly from us versus through third-party partners, as the gross
argin on sales of hardware is lower than that on sales of software.

ost of services revenues consists primarily of the expenses associated with customer maintenance support and professional services,
ncluding employee compensation, outside consulting services and travel expenditures. Professional services costs include labor
harges for custom application design and development, customer training and assisting customers implement our voice-based
olutions. Professional services costs are tracked by project and are deferred until the related project revenue is recognized. Costs of
ustomer support and professional services staff performed in support of our sales and research and development activities are
ecorded as operating expenses. Our customer support and professional services staff was comprised of 20 individuals as of June 30,
007, as compared to 34 individuals as of June 30, 2006. Cost of services revenues decreased $767,000 (22%) from $3,480,000 in the
ear ended June 30, 2006 to $2,713,000 in the year ended June 30, 2007. Labor costs of our customer support and professional
ervices groups decreased $1,040,000 from $3,182,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006 to $2,142,000 in the year ended June 30, 2007.
abor cost reductions are primarily due to the reduction in the size of our professional services staff required to support our customers.
ith the introduction of our Voxware 3.0 product and reduced emphasis on our older VLE product, less staff is needed to develop and
mplement customized software applications. Travel costs decreased by $54,000 during the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to
he year ended June 30, 2006. Costs incurred by customer support and professional services staff in support of our sales and research
nd development activities, which are classified as operating expenses in our statement of operations, decreased from $828,000 in the
ear ended June 30, 2006 to $457,000 in the year ended June 30, 2007. Redirecting the efforts of the customer support and
rofessional services groups from supporting our sales and research and development activities had the effect of increasing cost of
ervices revenues by $371,000 in the year ended June 30, 2007, while decreasing operating expenses by the same amount.

perating Expenses

otal operating expenses decreased by $4,084,000 (27%) to $10,895,000 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 from $14,979,000 in
he fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. As of June 30, 2007, headcount associated with operating expenses (research and development,
Lales and marketing, general and administrative) totaled 46 individuals compared to 51 individuals as of June 30, 2006."

escarch and development expenses primarily consist of employee compensation, consulting fees and other costs associated with our
oice recognition technology, hardware platform and VoiceLogistics software suite. In addition, costs incurred by our customer
upport and professional services teams relating to the development of our VoiceLogistics software suite are charged to research and
levelopment. Our research and development team was comprised of 20 individuals as of June 30, 2007 compared to 19 individuals as
»f June 30, 2006. Our research and development expenses decreased $674,000 (19%) to $2,783,000 in the year ended June 30, 2007,
rom $3,457,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006. The decrease in research and development expenses during the year ended June 30,
2007 is due primarily to decreases of $327,000 in costs incurred by our customer support and professional services teams in support of
esearch and development activities and $344,000 for outside consulting services. The decreases are primarily related to the
liscontinuation during fiscal year 2007 of ongoing development efforts of our legacy product, VLE. Future research and development
fforts will focus primarily on continued enhancement of Voxware 3.0. In addition, share-based compensation included in research
ind development expenses decreased from $297,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006 to $0 during the year ended June 30, 2007.
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This decrease is the result of the accelerated vesting on June 30, 2006 of outstanding options to purchase shares of our Common Stoclf
held by employees on our research and development staff. The acceleration of vesting of employees’ options was undertaken
primarily to eliminate any future compensation expense we would otherwise recognize in our consolidated statement of operations
with respect to these options due to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment™, which we
implemented effective July 1, 2006. Overall, research and development costs for the year ending June 30, 2008 are expected to be
higher than during the year ended June 30, 2007 due to planned staff additions enabling us to increase our investment in Voxware 3.0

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of employee compensation (including direct sales commissions), third-party
partnership fees, travel expenses and trade show expenses. Our sales and marketing staff was comprised of 16 individuals as of June
30, 2007 compared to 21 individuals as of June 30, 2006. Sales and marketing expenses decreased $69,000 (1%) to $5,394,000 in the
year ended June 30, 2007, from $5,463,000 in the year ended June 30, 2006, reflecting our focus on expanding customer base and
channel partner relationships both domestically and abroad. The change in sales and marketing expenses is due primarily to increases
of $284.000 in salary and related charges due primarily to the makeup of the sales and marketing staff, which included more manager:
with higher compensation in fiscal year 2007 than in fiscal year 2006, and to the timing of staff hires throughout fiscal year 2006.
Outside consulting services increased by $71,000 and marketing program costs increased by $142,000. These increases were offset b
decreases of $155,000 for recruiting charges and $127,000 for travel costs, Also, share-based compensation included in sales and
marketing expenses decreased from $372,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006 to $7,000 during the year ended June 30, 2007.
This decrease is the result of the accelerated vesting on June 30, 2006 of outstanding options to purchase shares of our Common Stoc+
held by employees on our sales and marketing staff. Although our sales and marketing costs during the three months ended June 30,
2007 were less than during the three months ended June 30, 2006 due primarily to a consolidation of the sales and marketing team
during fiscal year 2007, we expect to continue investing additional resources in the expansion of our marketing programs and channel
partner relationships. Due to the significant lead time required to identify, engage, and train third-party partners in the sale and
development of VoiceLogistics solutions, we anticipate sales and marketing expenses during fiscal year 2008 may be higher than
those costs incurred during fiscal year 2007,

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee compensation and fees for insurance, rent, office expenses,
professional services, public company related charges and income and expenses related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 4
rates. The general and administrative staff was comprised of 10 individuals as of June 30, 2007 and 11 individuals as of June 30, 200
General and administrative expenses decreased $3,341,000 (55%) to $2,718,000 in the year ended June 30, 2007 from $6,059,000 in
the year ended June 30, 2006. Labor costs decreased by $67,000 during the year ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the year ended
June 30, 2006. Costs associated with being a publicly traded company decreased by $226,000 due primarily to filing fees associated
with the registration of shares of our Common Stock during fiscal 2006. In addition, we experienced a gain of $89,000 from
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates during the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to a loss of $52,000 during the year
ended June 30, 2006, a change of $141,000. These reductions to general and administrative expenses were offset by severance costs
of $270,000 due to the resignation of Thomas Drury, Jr. as president, chief executive officer and director on October 31, 2006, and a
staff reduction plan that eliminated 17 positions during the second quarter of fiscal year 2007. The non-cash charge share-based
compensation expense included in general and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $62,000 as compared to
$3,254,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006. This decrease is primarily the result of the accelerated vesting at June 30, 2006 of
outstanding options to purchase our Common Stock held by our employees, and as a result, no share-based compensation charge
relating to these options was recognized in the year ended June 30, 2007. The vesting of options held by non-employees to purchase
shares of our Common Stock was not accelerated at June 30, 2006. The acceleration of vesting of employees’ options was undertaker
primarily to eliminate any future compensation expense we would otherwise recognize in our consolidated statement of operations
with respect to these options due to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, which we
implemented effective July 1, 2006. In conjunction with the acceleration of vesting of the options, we recorded charges of $2,463,004
in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.
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terest Income (Expense), net

erest income earned is reported net of interest expense. Net interest income for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $37,000,
mpared to net interest expense of $45,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006, a change of $82,000. This change is primarily due to a
crease in interest charges related to the 2003 Silicon Valley Bank credit facility, which was fully paid in December 2006.

come Taxes

e provision for income taxes was 30 for the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to a tax benefit of $228,000 for the year ended
ne 30, 2006. We had a loss before taxes of $1,936,000 for accounting purposes during the year ended June 30, 2007, compared to
,991,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006. The decrease in benefit from income taxes is primarily the result of the sale during
e year ended June 30, 2006 of unused State of New Jersey net operating losses for cash in the amount of $248,000.

ere are significant differences in calculating income or loss for accounting and tax purposes, primarily relating to charges that are
corded in the current period for accounting purposes, but are deferred for tax purposes. Furthermore, tax laws differ in each
isdiction, yielding differing amounts of taxable income or loss in each jurisdiction. While we have substantial net operating losses
offset taxable income in some taxing jurisdictions, certain restrictions preclude us from fully utilizing the benefit of these net
erating losses. In addition, the expansion of our business requires us to file taxes in jurisdictions where we did not previously
erate, and thus do not have established net operating losses to offset the tax liability.

quidity and Capital Resources

s of June 30, 2007, we had $4,961,000 in cash and cash equivalents, compared to $6,909,000 in cash and cash equivalents as of June
, 2006, a decrease of $1,948,000. Our working capital as of June 30, 2007 was $3,281,000 compared to $4,005,000 as of June 30,

)06, a decrease of $724,000.

et cash used in operating activities totaled $1,546,000 for year ended June 30, 2007, primarily consisting of a net loss of $1,936,000
d increases of $2,859,000 in accounts receivable and $417,000 in inventory, offset by an increase in deferred revenues of

,776,000, an increase of $1,713,000 in accounts payable and accrued expenses, and non-cash charges of $512,000 primarily for
preciation, amortization and share based compensation. The increases in accounts receivable primarily reflects revenues of
,904,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007, which were $1,419,000 higher than for the three months ended June 30, 2006.
dditionally, the increase in accounts receivable reflects increased software maintenance and extended hardware warranty billings,
hd the impact of foreign sources of revenue, which generally require a longer collection cycle. Customers outside of North America
mtributed 26% of our revenues during the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to 25% during the year ended June 30, 20006.
creases in deferred revenues are primarily due to the timing of maintenance billings throughout the year, which were higher during
e year ended June 30, 2007 than during the year ended June 30, 2006 and new customer site implementations. The increase in
ventory is primarily due to the receipt in June 2007 of a significant inventory order that we delivered to our customer in July 2007.
hanges in accounts payable and accrued expenses are primarily a function of the timing of the recording of expenses versus related
iyments. Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of June 30, 2007 includes $1,029,000 more of inventory purchases and
718,000 more in accruals of operating costs than at June 30, 2006. Non-cash charges during the year ended June 30, 2007 consisted
rimarily of depreciation and amortization costs and share based compensation, and were $4,009,000 less than for the year ended June
}, 2006. The decrease in non-cash charges is due primarily to a reduction in share-based compensation caused by the accelerated
:sting of outstanding stock options in June 2006. Net cash used in operating activities totaled $2,623,000 for fiscal 2006, primarily
sisting of a net loss of $6,763,000, adjusted for a decrease of $791,000 in accounts payable and accrued expenses, and an increase
[ $81,000 in accounts receivable; offset by an increase of $450,000 in deferred revenues, a decrease in deferred project costs of
36,000 and non-cash charges including share based compensation of $4,062,000, amortization of financing costs of $178,000,
:preciation and amortization charges of $201,000, and provision for doubtful accounts of $80,000. Changes to the balances of
:counts receivable were primarily due to the decrease in revenue during the three months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the
wree months ended June 30, 2006. Changes to deferred project costs were due primarily to the timing of sales within the year.
ccounts payable and accrued expenses decreased during the year ended June 30, 2007, as funding from the August 2005 private
lacement provided resources that allowed us to reduce our outstanding liabilities.

et cash used in investing activities totaled $183,000 during the year ended June 30, 2007 due primarily to purchases of property and
quipment. In the year ended June 30, 2006, net cash used in investing activities totaled $396,000 as a result of purchases of property
nd equipment totaling $351,000 and capitalized software development costs totaling $45,000.

et cash used in financing activities totaled $219,000 in fiscal year 2007, compared to $6,289,000 provided by financing activities in
scal year 2006. During the year ended June 30, 2007, we received proceeds of $1,800,000 and $3,000,000, respectively against our
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working line of credit and term loan with SVB, and repaid $3,100,000 against the working line of credit and $2,128,000 against term
loans with SVB. We received net proceeds in the amount of $209,000 from the cashless exercise of stock options during the year
ended June 30, 2007. This balance consisted of $704,000 received from the exercise by employees of stock options net of $495,000
paid by Voxware to repurchase Common Stock from a former executive in accordance with the cashless stock option provision of his
employment agreement. During the year ended June 30, 2006, a private placement of our Common Stock in August 2005 yielded nef
proceeds of approximately 36,190,000, while $58,000 was raised from the exercise by employees of options to purchase Common
Stock. We borrowed $1,300,000 against our working line of credit and $437,000 against a separate line of credit for the purchase of
equipment. The $1,000,000 borrowed against the working line of credit as of June 30, 2006 was fully paid during the year ended Jun
30, 2007. In addition, $681,000 was paid against long-term debt, and $15,000 was paid to repurchase fractional shares created by the
Reverse Split of our Common Stock in December 2005,

During fiscal years 2003 and 2004, we completed a series of private placements of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, or the Serie
D Preferred Stock. The Series D Preferred Stock had a 7% dividend payable in cash or equity, at our election, and was convertible ing
Common Stock on a one-for-one basis. Pursuant to these transactions, warrants to purchase Series D Preferred Stock were also
provided to certain holders of the Series D Preferred Stock. As of June 30, 2005, 649,621,940 shares of Series D Preferred Stock, and
warrants to purchase 156,879,326 shares of Series D Preferred Stock, were outstanding. In July 2003, 605,851 shares of Series D
Preferred Stock were converted into Common Stock.

On August 11, 2005, we entered into a Common Stock Purchase Agreement with certain accredited investors, pursuant to which we
agreed to issue an aggregate of up to 206,250,000 shares (1,375,000 shares after giving effect to the December 12, 2005 reverse split
of all outstanding shares of Common Stock at an exchange ratio of 1-for-150, which we refer to as the Reverse Split) of our Common
Stock in a private placement. On August 11, 2005, we issued and sold an aggregate of 188,860,967 shares (1,259,073 shares after
giving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock, and on August 22, 2005, the private placement's second and final closing, we
issued and sold an additional 17,389,030 shares (115,927 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split} of Common Stock. A total of]
206,249,997 shares (1,375,000 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split} of Common Stock were issued through the August 2003
private placement, or the Private Placement. We received aggregate proceeds of approximately $6,600,000 before expenses and
commissions. In connection with the Private Placement, the holders of a majority of our Series D Preferred Stock agreed to convert al
of the outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock. As a result, the remaining 649,016,089 shares of
Series D Preferred Stock were converted into 649,016,089 shares (4,326,774 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of
Common Stock, and 1,902,857 shares {12,685 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Sphit) of Common Stock were issued in lieu of
paying cash dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock for the period July 1, 2005 to August 11, 2005. As of August 31, 2005, taking
into consideration the Private Placement and unrelated exercises of stock options, we had 936,277,855 shares (6,241,852 shares after
giving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock issued and outstanding. No shares of Series D Preferred Stock remain
outstanding. Further, the holders of a majority of our Series D Preferred Stock agreed to amend and restate all of our outstanding
warrants to purchase shares of Series D Preferred Stock into warrants to purchase shares of Common Stock. In addition, certain
holders of Series D Preferred Stock waived their right to receive options to purchase up to 18,666,667 shares (124,444 shares after
giving effect to the Reverse Split) of our Common Stock as a result of delays in registering shares issued under the 2003 and 2004
sales of Series D Preferred Stock.

Proceeds from the Private Placement were used to fund increased research and development activities, as well as support the

substantial expansion of our sales and marketing channels domestically and abroad. We added significant personnel costs and
marketing program expenses during fiscal 2006 in these areas in advance of offsetting revenues. Personnel costs were reduced throug]
a staff reduction during the second quarter of fiscal 2007 in order to more closely align costs with revenues, but will be partially offse
by third-party resources and newly hired staff supporting the continued enhancement and marketing of our Voxware 3.0 product line.

On February 15, 2007, we received a notice from the Listing Qualifications Department of The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc., or
NASDAQ, indicating that the NASDAQ staff had determined that we did not comply with or satisfy NASDAQ Marketplace Rule
4310(c)}2)(B) for continued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market, which requires that we maintain minimum stockholders equity o
$2,500,000 or $35,000,000 market value of listed securities or $500,000 of net income from continuing operations for the most
recently completed fiscal year or two of the three most recently completed fiscal years. On March 2, 2007, we provided the NASDAQ
staff with our specific plan to achieve and sustain compliance with the NASDAQ Capital Market listing requirements, including the
time frame for completion of the plan. In response thereto, we received, on March 23, 2007, a determination from the NASDAQ staff|
a notice denying our request for continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market, or the Determination, as a result of our failure to |
comply with or satisfy NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4310(c)(2)(B). In response to the Determination, we requested a hearing before
the NASDAQ Listing Qualifications Panel, or the Panel, 1o appeal the Determination and seek continued listing on The NASDAQ
Capital Market. We were granted a hearing before the Panel, scheduled for May 10, 2007. On May 1, 2007, we reported stockholders'
equity of $2,556,000 in our Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2007. In response to this filing, we received a letter from
the Nasdaq Stock Market Inc. indicating that our stockholders’ equity balance again satisfies Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4310(c)}(2)(B)
for continued listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market as we have regained a minimum stockholders’ equity of $2,500,000. Accordingly,
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e hearing before the Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Panel scheduled for May 10, 2007 to appeal Determination by the Nasdagq staff to
ny our continued listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market was cancelled. In order to assist our efforts to sustain compliance with
ASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4310(c)(2)(B), certain stockholders agreed in April 2007 to exercise warrants to purchase Common

ock if requested in writing by us. Under the terms of the agreement, the stockholders will, upon written request from us, exercise
arrants to purchase up to 354,322 shares of Common Stock on or before June 30, 2008. In the event that all of the warrants are
ercised, we will receive cash proceeds increasing stockholders equity by $500,000.

n December 30, 2003, we entered into a credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank, or the 2003 SVB Facility. The 2003 SVB Facility
itially provided us with $2,000,000 in financing, comprised of a $1,500,000 term loan and $500,000 working capital facility. The

rm loan was payabte in monthly instaliments over a 36-month period commencing February |, 2004. The 2003 SVB Facility bore
terest at a rate of plus ¢.5% per annum, and was secured by all of our assets, including our intellectuat property, and a guarantee¢ by

r two largest stockholders. In exchange for the SVB Facility guarantee, the stockholders were granted warrants to purchase
3,333,333 shares of our Series D Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $0.015 per share. As a result of the Private Placement,

ese warrants were converted into warrants to purchase 133,333,333 shares (888,889 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of
ommon Stock at an exercise price of $0.015 per share ($2.25 per share after giving effect to the Reverse Split).

e engaged Hempstead & Co. as our valuation expert to assist in determining the fair value of the guarantee for which the warrants

ere issued. Based on the work performed by Hempstead & Co., we recorded a deferred financing asset of $500,000 on our balance

cet as of December 31, 2003, This deferred asset was amortized over 36 months commencing on January 1, 2004, and is fully
ortized as of June 30, 2007,

n May 28, 2004, we entered into a modification agreement with SVB to the term loan with SVB deferring the seven monthly

incipal payments originally scheduled to occur from June 1, 2004 through December 1, 2004. Commencing on January 1, 2005, and
er the remaining 24 payments, the deferred principal payments were amortized and added to the original principal payment amount.
he final term loan payment was made on December 1, 2006.

n December 8, 2004, we entered into a second loan modification agreement with SVB wherein, among other factors, the working
pital line of credit was increased from $500,000 to $2,000,000. The terms of the modification agreement allowed for immediate
ailability of $666,667 under this working capital line of credit. The amount of availability was determined by subtracting from
,000,000 the amount outstanding under the term loan. Effective January 1, 2005, the monthly principal payment under the term

an was approximately $56,000. These monthly principal payments under the term loan had the effect of increasing the available
orking capital line of credit by an equal amount. The renewal interest rate was at prime plus 0.5%, with a floor rate of prime interest
te at 4.5%. As of June 30, 2007, the term loan was fully paid.

n November 9, 2005, we entered into a third loan modification agreement with SVB, providing us with a line of credit of up to
1,000,000, which we refer to as the Equipment Line, to finance the acquisition of certain eligible equipment purchased on or after
pril 1, 2005. We first drew upon the Equipment Line on December 16, 2005, and were required to make interest-only payments, at a
te of prime plus 1.75%, on the principal balance through May 9, 2006. At that date, the Equipment Line was converted into a term
an with 30 fixed monthly payments of approximately $17,000. Effective May 9, 2006, the interest rate was fixed at 9.5%. The

paid principal balance outstanding as of June 30, 2007 was $253,000.

n January 20, 2006, with an effective date of December 26, 2003, we entered into a fourth loan modification agreement with SVB,
newing the working capital line of credit to December 26, 2006. The terms remained materially the same as the second loan
odification agreement, with the exception that leiters of credit, foreign exchange contracts, and certain cash management related
rvices, to the extent they may impose a liability on the bank, were deducted from the available limit that we were permitted to

orrow. Letters of credit, foreign exchange contracts, and certain cash management related services were each limited to a maximum

£$100,000 in accordance with the terms of the fourth loan modification. As of December 26, 2006, the working capital line of credit -
pired and we were no longer permitted to borrow against it.

n May 24, 2006, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreement, or 20§06 Facility, with SVB, providing an additional $3,000,000
edit facility comprised of a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit, or the Revolver, and a 1,500,000 Non-Formula Term Loan, or the
006 Term Loan, to fund our anticipated working capital needs. Funds available under the Revolver are reduced by the maximum
mit of a corporate credit card, which was $35,000 as of June 30, 2007. The Revolver is available until October 31, 2007. The 2006
erm Loan was available to draw upon until March 31, 2007 and is to be repaid in thirty-six (36) equal monthly payments of principle
nd interest, commencing on April I, 2007,

n January 3, 2007, with an effective date of December 29, 2006, we entered into an amended and restated loan agreement with SVB

10difying the 2006 Facility by extending the Revolver to December 28, 2007 and revising certain covenants. The Revolver provides
r a line of credit up to $1,500,000, with a $1,000,000 sub-limit to be established for cash management and foreign exchange
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requirements. The availability under the Revolver is limited to a borrowing base advance rate that is 75% against Eligible Accounts
(as such term is defined in the Revolver). Amounts outstanding under the Revolver bear interest at June 30, 2007 at the rate of 10%,
calculated as prime plus 1.75%. Upon two consecutive quarters of profitability, the interest rate will be reduced to a rate of prime plus
0.5%. In addition, a fee of 0.25% is charged against the unused portion of the Revolver. No funds were borrowed against the
Revolver at June 30, 2007. Amounts outstanding under the 2006 Term Loan bear interest at June 30, 2007 at a rate of 10.5%,
calculated as prime plus 2.25%. Under certain conditions, any borrowings under our 2006 Term Loan will be reserved against the
availability of the Revolver. $1,500,000 was borrowed against 2006 Term Loan as of December 31, 2006, but was repaid in January
2007. On February 1, 2007, we entered into a First Loan Maodification Agreement with SVB, whereby the Amended and Restated
Loan and Security Agreement was amended to allow for one term loan in addition to the one that was drawn in December 2006 and
repaid in January 2007. The additional term loan provided under the First Loan Modification Agreement is in an amount up to
$1,500,000, available to be drawn upon until March 31, 2007. On March 28, 2007, we drew the full $1,500,000 available under this
term loan, of which a principal balance of $1,375,000 remained outstanding as of June 30, 2007.

We are expanding our partnership channel, with particular emphasis on the development of relationships with mobile computer
equipment manufacturers and vendors, VARs, logistics consultants and WMS vendors. Partnership channel sales accounted for 5% of
our revenues during both vears ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, but is expected to contribute a higher percentage of revenue in the
future. With the introduction of Voxware 3.0 and VoxBrowser, independent third-party partners are able to develop and deliver voicq
enabled logistics solutions on other manufacturers’ hardware. As a result of the partner relationships and product offerings, a greater
percentage of revenue is likely to be derived from sofiware than has occurred historically, with a lower percentage of total revenue
derived from hardware and professional services. Software licenses contributed 24% of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2007
compared to 22% of revenue for the year ended June 30, 2006. The initial production implementations of Voxware 3.0 at customer
facilities occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. As a result, software licenses generated 29% of our revenues during the
final quarter of fiscal 2007, as compared to 18% during the final quarter of fiscal 2006. The gross margin generated by software
revenue is higher than that earned on hardware and professional services revenue. For the year ended June 30, 2007, we earned gross
margin from software licenses of 98%, as compared to 40% for sales of hardware units and related accessories.

In an effort to realign resources away from labor intensive, highly customized software solutions in favor of more productized
offerings, the Company enacted a cost restructuring plan in November 2006. We eliminated 21 staff positions during the second
quarter of fiscal 2007 through attrition and a reduction in force, representing approximately 24% of our workforce, The eliminated
positions were primarily focused on the development, support and marketing of our older VLE product line. We expect this lower
staff size will yield savings in labor related costs in excess of $1,800,000 per year, but will be partially offset by increased costs to
enhance and market our Voxware 3.0 product line. In anticipation of these additional costs, we expect that operating costs during
fiscal 2008 will exceed fiscal 2007 levels.

We expect fiscal year 2008 revenues will exceed fiscal year 2007 revenues. Our customer base continues to expand, with existing
customers expected to implement our products in additional sites as they experience favorable results with our offerings, and new
customers brought to us through VARs and other channel partners. We expect the majority of revenues will come from existing
customers in fiscal year 2008, but new customers, including those brought to us through VARSs and other channel partners, are i
|

expected to contribute a higher percentage of our total revenues than during fiscal year 2007. During the six months ended June 30, |
2007 we generated positive cash from operations due to increased revenues, a greater percentage of revenues derived from higher
margin software licenses, and the cost savings realized from the staff reduction that we undertook during the second quarter of fiscal
vear 2007, Also, $1,465,000 was available under our working capital line of credit with SVB as of June 30, 2007, which is available |
for short-term operating needs. In addition, $500,000 is available through a call provision incorporated into warrants held by certain '
stockholders. We may call for the exercise of these warrants through June 30, 2008 if needed to help sustain compliance with ongoing
listing requirements of the NASDAQ Capital Market. In addition, we believe we are able to raise additional capital through either
new equity or debt financing arrangements, and may elect to utilize such an arrangement to fund further expansion of our operations.
Due to anticipated increases in revenue, a greater emphasis on sales of higher margin product, and the availability of cash through
existing relationships with SVB and our certain stockholders, we believe that we have adequate capital resources available to fund our

operations through June 30, 2008.
As of June 30, 2007, 12,000,000 shares of our Common Stock were authorized, of which 6,368,963 were issued and outstanding. The

following table summarizes the dilutive impact in the event of the exercise of all options and warrants to purchase stock, including
options and warrants whose strike price exceeds the market value of our Common Stock.
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Dilutive Effect of Options and Warrants as of June 30, 2007

Common stock issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2007 6,368,963

Dilutive instruments:
Outstanding warrants to purchase common stock * 1,158,121
596,440

Outstanding options to purchase common stock *

Common stock plus dilutive instruments outstanding 8,123,524

Options to purchase common stock available to issue

pursuant to various stock option plans 403,595

Common stock outstanding if all dilutive instruments

are converted and exercised 8,527,119

* Includes all "in-the-money"” and "out-of-the-money” warrants and options.

ffect of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Interpretation No 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in

come Taxes-an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109", or FIN 48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income

xes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for [ncome Taxes.” FIN 48
rescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position
ken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We do not expect

e adoption of FIN 48 will have a material impact on our reported financial results,

September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No, 157, "Fair Value Measurements”, or SFAS 157. SFAS 157 defines fair value,
stablishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not require
ew fair value measurements. We are required to adopt SFAS 157 as of July |, 2008, and have not yet determined the impact that the

doption of SFAS 157 will have on our reported financial results.

February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”, or SFAS
59. SFAS 159 defines fair value, permits optional fair value reporting of certain assets and liabilities in lieu of historical cost
porting. We are required to adopt SFAS 159 as of July 1, 2008, and have not yet determined the impact that the adoption of SFAS

59 will have on our reported financial results.

anagement does not believe that any other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards, if currently adopted, would
ave a material effect on the accompanying financial statements.

vantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

terest Rate Sensitivity

e currently maintain an investment portfolio consisting mainly of cash equivalents. The primary objective of our investment
ctivities is to maintain the safety of principal and preserve liquidity, while maximizing yields without significantly increasing risk.
his is accomplished by investing in highly liquid short-term instruments with maturities of 90 days or less from the date of purchase.

e also maintain a credit facility with SVB that includes a term loan, equipment line of credit and working capital line of credit. In
ddition, this credit facility provides additional borrowing capacity as of June 30, 2007 via an asset-based revolving line of credit and
e loan. [nterest on this credit facility is based on the prime mterest rate. Interest rate changes would impact our interest income
arned, but would be partially offset by changes to our interest expense charges. Accordingly, we would not expect our operating
esults or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by a sudden change in market interest rates.

oreign Currency Exchange Rate

¢ frequently denominate our sales to certain European customers in Euros and Pound Sterling. Although we do not currently hedge
ertain balance sheet exposures and inter-company balances against future movements in foreign currency exchange rates, we do
inticipate exploring using foreign exchange contracts in the future. We did not hold derivative financial instruments for trading

wrposes during fiscal years 2007 and 2006.
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ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The financial statements and supplementary data required by this [tem are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB beginning
on page F-1.

ITEM 8 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 8A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES,

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act
reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and our chief financial
officet/principal accounting officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and
evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives.

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of June 30, 2007. Based
on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of June 30, 2007, our disciosure controls
and procedures were functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decision regarding disclosures.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes during the quarter ended June 30, 2007 in our internal control over financial reporting or in other factors that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

ITEM 8B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART 111

EM 9. DIRECTORS, EXFCUTIVE OFFHCERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE: COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT.

he information relating to our directors, nominees for election as directors and executive officers under the headings “Election of
irectors” and “Executive Officers” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated
erein by reference to such proxy statement.

[EM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

he discussion under the heading “Executive Compensation™ in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
ockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement.

[EM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

he discussion under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our definitive proxy
atement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement.

TEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

he discussion under the heading “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Board Independence” in our definitive proxy
atement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement.

EM 13. EXHIBITS.

ist of documents filed as part of this Annnal Report on Form 10-KSB.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. The financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements appearing on
ge F-1 are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

EXHIBITS. The following is a list of Exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB. Where so indicated by footnote,
hibits that were previously filed are incorporated by reference. For Exhibits incorporated by reference, the location of the Exhibit in
¢ previous filing is indicated in parentheses.

} Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 4, 1999, by and between Ascend Communications,
Inc. and Voxware, Inc.**(1)

3.1{a} Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation**{11)
31(b) Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.**(12)
3.1(c) Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation **(13)

3.1(d) Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, filed with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on December 29, 2004.%*(25)

3.1(e) Certificate of Amendment to the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, as filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on November 28, 2005.**(22)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws.**(11)

4.1 Stock Restriction and Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 4, 2000, by and among Voxware,
Inc., Verbex Acquisition Corporation, InRoad, Inc. and Stratos Product Development LLC.*¥(3)
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42

43

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

48

49

4.10

4.11

4.12

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Form of Warrant issued to InRoad, Inc., dated April 4, 2000.%%(3)
Warrant issued to Stratos Product Development, LLC, dated April 4, 2000.%*%(3)

Amendment to Warrants, dated as of July 7, 2003, by and among Voxware, Inc. and Stratos Product
Development, LLC and InRoad, Inc.**(25)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant.**(10)
Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Ridgecrest Capital Partners. ¥*(10)
Form of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock Purchase Warrant. **(10)

Form of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock Purchase Warrant to be issued to Edison Venture Fund
V, L.P., dated December 30, 2003.%*(12)

Form of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock Purchase Warrant to be issued to Cross Atlantic
Technology Fund Il, L.P., dated December 30, 2003.*%*(12)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to former holders of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock Purchase Warrants (see Exhibits 4.7, 4.8 and 4.9).**(25)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Mufson Howe Hunter & Company LLC, dated
August 11, 2005.*¥%(25)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Alan A. Nash, dated August 11, 2005.%*%(25)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Duncan J. L. Fitzwilliams, dated August i1,
2005.%*(25)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Emma Smith, dated August 11, 2005.*%%(25)
Voxware, Inc. 1994 Stock Option Plan. **(2)

Form of Voxware, Inc. Stock Option Agreement,**(2)

Form of Indemnification Agreement.**(2)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2000, by and between Voxware, Inc. and
Castle Creek Technology Partners, LLC.*¥*(4)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2000, by and between Voxware, Inc, and
Castle Creek Technology Partners, LLC.**{4)

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2001, by and between Voxware, Inc. and Castle
Creek Technology Partners, LLC, together with the form of Additional Share Warrant attached as an
exhibit thereto.**(7)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 19, 2001, by and between Voxware, Inc. and Castle
Creek Technology Partners, LLC, together with the form of Remedy Warrant attached as an exhibit
thereto.**(7)

Voxware, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan for Qutside Directors.**(8)

Voxware, Inc. Plan to Pay Non-Employee Directors an Annual Retainer.**(8)

Series D Convertible Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2003, by and among
Voxware, Inc. and the Purchasers thereto.**(10)
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10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23%#

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

Exchange Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2003, by and between Voxware, Inc, and Castle Creek
Technology Partners, LLC.**(10)

Exchange Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2003, by and among Voxware, Inc. and certain holders
of its Series C Convertible Preferred Stock.**(10)

Exchange Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2003, by and among Voxware, Inc., Creafund n.v.,
Avvision BVBA, BYBA Com2Wizards, Eurl Val D Auso and Wim Deneweth.** (10)

Settlement Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2003, by and between Voxware, Inc. and Castle Creek
Technology Partners, LLC.**(10)

Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2003, by and between Voxware, Inc. and the
Investors thereto.**(11)

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of June 27, 2003, by and between Voxware, Inc. and the Holders
and Investors listed on Schedule 1 thereto. **(11)

Voxware, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan.**(11)
Form of Voxware, Inc. Stock Option Agreement.**(11)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2003, by and between Voxware, Inc. and
Silicon Valley Bank.**(12)

Intellectual Property Security Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2003, by and between Voxware,
Inc. and Silicon Valley Bank.**(12)

Unconditional Guaranty of Edison Venture Fund V, L.P., as guarantor, dated as of December 29,
2003, **(12)

Unconditional Guaranty of Cross Atlantic Technology Fund II, L.P., as guarantor, dated as of
December 29, 2003.%*(12)

Indemnification Agreement, dated June 21, 2004, by and between Voxware, Inc. and Paul
Commons, **(25)

Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement, date as of August 11, 2005 by and between Voxware,
Inc. and certain accredited investors, **(20)

Form of Amendment No. 2 to Stockholders Agreement, dated as of August 11, 2005 by and between
Voxware, Inc. and certain accredited investors.**(20)

Form of Amended and Restated Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of August 11, 2005 by and
between Voxware, Inc. and certain accredited investors.**(20)

License, Development and Reseller Agreement, dated as of September 26, 2005, by and between
Voxware, Inc. and LXE, Inc.**1(29)

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of January 3, 2007, and effective as of
December 29, 2006 between Silicon Valley Bank and Voxware, Inc.**(27)

First Loan Modification Agreement dated as of February 1, 2007 between Silicon Valley Bank and
Voxware, Inc.**(28)

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of January 3, 2007 and effective as of December 29, 2006
between Silicon Valley Bank and Voxware, Inc.** (27)

Amendment to Loan Arrangement with Voxware, Inc. dated as of January 3, 2007, from Verbex
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10.32#

21.1

231

232

31.1

31.2

321

322

99.1

* ¥

(1)
@)
(3)
()
&)
®
0
®
®)
(10}
(11}
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)

Filed herewith.

Acquisition Corporation** (27)

Executive Employment Agreement between Voxware, Inc. and Scott J. Yetter** (30)
Subsidiaries of Voxware, Inc.**(11)

Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP*

Consent of Hempstead & Co.*

Certification of principal executive officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Certification of the principal financial officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 .*
Certification of the principal executive officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.*

Certification of the principal financial officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Hempstead & Co. valuation report dated February 16, 2004.**(14)

Previously filed with the Commission as Exhibits to, and incorporated by reference from, the following documents:

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a

request for confidential treatment.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-KSB.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 1998.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File Number 33-08393).

Filed in connection with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2000.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on August 16, 2000,

Filed in connection with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-2 (File Number 33-68646).

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on April 20, 2001.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File Number 33-33342}).

Filed in connection with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on Aprii 17, 2003.

Filed in connection with the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003,

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on January 6, 2004,

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on May 7, 2004.

Filed in connection with the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on November 12, 2004,

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on December 10, 2004,
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17)
18)
19)
20)
D1)
D2)
D3)
P4)
b5)
b6)
D7)
P8)
29)
30)

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on December 15, 2004,

Filed in connection with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2004,
Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on February 9, 2005.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on August 11, 2005.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on November 9, 2005,

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on November 29, 2005.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on January 24, 2006.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on May 24, 2006.

Filed in connection with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Filed in connection with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2005.
Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K that was filed on January 8, 2007.

Filed in connection with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006.
Filed in connection with the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB/A for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2005.
Filed in connection with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 17, 2007.

TEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

'he discussion under the heading “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Other Matters” in our definitive proxy
tatement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement,
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized this 25th day of September 2007.

VOXWARE, INC.

By: /s/ Scott J. Yetter
Scott J. Yetter, President and Chief Executive Officer
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rsuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below be the following persons on
half of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. '

nature Title Date

/ Joseph A. Allegra Chairman and Directot September 25, 2007
hseph A. Allegra

/ Scott J. Yetter President and Chief Executive Officer September 25, 2007
cott J. Yetter (principal executive officer)

/ Paul Commons Chief Financial Officer September 25, 2007
aul Commons (principal financial '

and principal accounting officer)

5/ James L. Alexandre Director September 25, 2007
ames L. Alexandre

5/ Donald R. Caldwell Director September 23, 2007
Donald R. Caldwell

5/ Don Cohen Director September 25, 2007

Don Cohen
/ Michael Janis Director September 25, 2007

ichael Janis

/ Robert Olanoff Director September 25, 2007
obert Olanoff
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eport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

oard of Directors and Stockholders
oxware, Inc,
awrenceville, NJ

e have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Voxware. Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30,
07 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended.
hese financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
nancial statements based on our audits.

e conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
hose standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
ee of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control

er financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
ocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
ompany’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
st basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
gnificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our

dits provide a reasonabie basis for our opinion.

our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
oxware, Inc. and subsidiaries at June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ded, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

s discussed in Note 1, effective July 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment”. ’

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

cthesda, Maryland
eptember 25, 2007




Voxware, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share data)

June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 4961 8§ 6,909
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $104 and
$184 at June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006, respectively 5,238 2,394
Inventory, net 1,046 629
Deferred project costs 268 54
Prepaids and other current assets 207 85
Total current assets 11,720 10,071
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 359 388
OTHER ASSETS
Deferred financing costs, net - 88
Capitalized software development costs - 45
Other assets, net 53 54
Total other assets 53 187
TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,132 § 10,646
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIARILITIES
Current portion of long-term debt $ 687 % 503
Line of credit - 1,300
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,025 2,312
Deferred revenues 3,727 1,951
Total current liabilities 8,439 6,066
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 941 253
Total liabilities 9,380 6,319
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 12,000,000 shares authorized as of
June 3¢, 2007 and June 30, 2006; 6,368,963 and 6,262,844
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006, respectively 6 6
Additional paid-in capital 78,088 77,713
Accurnulated deficit (75,325) (73,389)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {17) (3)
Total stockholders’' equity 2,752 4,327
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 3 12,132 % 10,646

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Yoxware, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended June 30,
2007 2006
REVENUES
Product revenues $ 11,566 3 11,922
Services revenues 3,854 3,556
Total revenues 15,420 15,478
COST OF REVENUES
Cost of product revenues 3,785 3,965
Cost of service revenues 2,713 3,480
Total cost of revenues 6,498 7,445
GROSS PROFIT 8,922 8,033
OPERATING EXPENSES
Research and development 2,783 3,457
Sales and marketing 5,394 5,463
General and administrative 2,718 6,059
Total operating expenses 10,895 14,979
OPERATING LOSS (1,973) (6,946)
INTEREST INCOME (EXPENSE), NET 37 (45)
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (1,936) (6,991)
(PROVISION FOR) BENEFIT FROM INCOME TAXES - 228
NET LOSS (1,936) (6,763)
Dividends-Series D Convertible Preferred Stock - (80)
NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ {1,936) 3 (6,843)
NET LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TQO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS
Basic & diluted $ (0.31) $ (1.22)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES USED IN
COMPUTING NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE
Basic & diluted 6,292 5,596

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.




“SjuduIdelS [RIoUBUL PAEPI[OSUOD O) S3j0U puk s1dl[od Sununodoe jo Arewnuns Suifuedurooor aag

ey 5 $  (68¢'cL) $ gl $ 9 $  PpRToT'9 - $ -
(8120}
(s1) (sp) - - - - - -
(£9L'9) - (£9¢'9) - - - - -
(sn . - (s1) - (11 - -
8¢ - - 8¢ - $0L°€T - -
061°9 - - 6819 I 000°cLE D - -
- - - - - £89'71 - -
- - - 9t9 ¥ LIR'0EE'Y (0$9) (OF6'129°6+9)
907 - - 290'v - - - -
018 $ $  (97999) $§  £LL'99 $ 1 $ LTS 089 $  OP6IT96P
%10, $5077 aassudgaduro)) JTRITES (] jende)y ur-preg unowy sareyg Jjo junoury satelyg
JAIQ) PR DWNIIY PAEIMWNIIY [euonIppy 100'S Jaquuny y30)g neA JO Jaquuny
aneA IBg UoWuE07)y paeIs

PaLidjaid ( SIS

(erep 2aeys ydadxa ‘spuesnotp ui)
Annby S13pIYHI0ES JO HUINELG PAEPIOSLO])
SILIEIPISGNG PUE "JU] ‘2IBMXOA

9007 “0g auny ‘asuejeq
50| aatsuayardwoa [wo],
wawsnipe
UONR[SURD) A2U34IND US1a1C]
S50] JoN
1$50] aalsuaypidwo))
1yds yoois
ISI3AI 0 NP SIILYS [EUOTORY
Juinssy jo nay| ur pred gsey
S)URLIRM F0]S DUR
suondo 3o01s Jo asiaraxg
31809 UOTIDBSURI) JO Jau ‘Yses
J10J Y20]$ UOWIWOD JO JIUBNSS)
Y3015 pauagaud ¢] saueg o
SPU3IPAIP PAMLIIDE JO UIWA[AS
Ul 32015 UOWILIOD JO AOUENSS|
3018 UOWILLOD OJUL ¥D0]S
pazzjaid ( $91I3G JO UOISIIAUGY)
uonesuadwod aadojdwa
PALI3aP JO UONEBZILIOWY
00T “0€ aunf *adue[eg




"SIUSUWIELS [BIOUBUL] PAIEPI{OSUOD 0) sj0u pue saidyod Surjunodde jo Arewmns Suiueduiodse aag

L't 8 LD §  (sze'sy) $ 880°8L S 9 §  £96'39¢9 - $ -
{(0s6'1)
(1) 1) - - - - - -
(956'1) - (9e6'1) - - - - -
602 - - 60T - 611901 - -
991 - - 991 - - - -
Fid ok S (3 §  (e3¢°¢L) $ CILLL $ 9 $ Pr797'9 - $ -
11300 unol— w.f..—m-u:u._m:—cu myaq _uu_n—nu -.__u—umnm junowy nuhnnm ._a unowy wo.—.w—_m
LAY pAIRINUNIIY PAIBINWNIIY [euoIuppy 100°S Jxquiny Yoos anjeA Jo Jaquiny
ELLILY L | ooy paBl§

Paliajaig ( SIS

(e3ep aaeys 1dadxd ‘'spugsnoy) ur)
(panunue)} AINDH SIIPIOYHI0IS JO SJUIWAIEIS PAIBPIOSUOD)
SILIBIPISQNS PUT U] ‘3IBMXOA

LOOT ‘0g dun[ ‘aouzeg
sso) sarsuayauduion Jmoy,
wsunsnipe
uonE|SUEI]) A2U3LND USIAI0
5501 19N
:$507 aaIsuayardwo)

suondo o015 Jo asio1axy
uonesuadwos peseq-aeys
S00T ‘0g un ‘aosuejey




Voxware, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Share based compensation charges
Amortization of capitalized software development costs
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
| Inventory
| Deferred project costs
: Prepaids and other current assets
Other assets, net
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
| Deferred revenues
' Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from dispesal of property and equipment
Capitalized software development costs
Net cash used in investing activities
|
|

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long term debt
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term debt
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Purchase of fractional shares created by reverse stock split
Proceeds from equity financing
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest

Conversion of Series D convertible preferred stock into common stock
issuance of common stock in payment of Series D preferred stock dividends

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006
$ (1,936) $ (6,763)
212 201
I 80
166 4,062
45 -
88 178
(2,859) (81)
(417) (13)
(214) 96
(122) (24)
1 (18)
1,713 (791)
1,776 450
(1,546) (2,623)
(184) (3s1)
1 -
- (45)
(183) (396)
3,000 -
1,800 1,737
(2,128) (681)
(3,100) (1,000)
- (15)
- 6,190
209 58
(219) 6,289
(1,948) 3,270
6,909 3,639
$ 4,961 $ 6,909
$ 83 $ 69
$ - $ 650
$ - 8 80

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
THE COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
ture of Business Operations

xware, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Voxware”, or the “Company”) is a leading provider of software for voice recognition solutions that
ect the work of the distribution center workforce. The Company’s product, Voxware 3.0, enables warehouse workers to perform a
de array of tasks such as picking, receiving, and put away more efficiently and effectively.

abled by Voxware’s patented speech recognition Voice Extensible Markup Language Web browser technology, the Voxware
ution creates a dynamic, real-time link between highly mobile workers, the warehouse management system (“WMS”} and
ervisory personnel. Workers wearing a small wireless portable computer and a headset receive their directions from the Company’s
are via a voice. The worker in turn talks back to the computer, telling it what product/parts they have retrieved and asking for
next set of instructions. Unlike a paper based system, this is real-time interaction with its inherent advantages. Additionally,
like a bar code scanning system, it is hands-free, thus enabling the worker 10 be more productive and just as accurate. The Company
lieves that its patented solution is unique in the industry because it is the first open standards, Web-based, people-centric, interactive
eech recognition technotogy engineered specifically to operate in highly demanding industrial environments. Voxware offers broad

guage support for a culturally diverse workforce.

hile a full voice recognition solution is a combination of software, hardware and professional services, our primary focus and the

re of our business is the software component of the solution. Customers may choose from a variety of certified hardware devices,
ich may or may not be supplied by Voxware. Customers may choose to have solutions delivered by purchasing services from

rtified Voxware partners who also resell the Voxware software. Thus, software that both enables voice recognition and also
ilitates the creation of voice applications or workflows is at the heart of our business.

xware sells primarily to large companies that operate warehouses and distribution centers. The Company has customers from a
riety of industry sectors, including food service, grocery, retail, consumer packaged goods, automotive parts, third-party logistics
oviders and wholesale distribution. Voxware’s technology has the ability to integrate easily with an external WMS.

xware also sells software and some hardware accessories to value-added resellers who in turn develop and deliver voice solutions
sed on Voxware’s software for their customers.

e European customers accounted for 26% and 25% of the Company’s total revenue for fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively.

e Company’s operating results may fluctuate significantly in the future as a result of a variety of factors, including the Company’s
ility to compete in the voice-based logistics market, the budgeting cycles of potential customers, the lengthy sales cycle of the
mpany’s solutions, the volume of and revenues derived from sales of products utilizing our third-party partners network, the
troduction of new products or services by the Company or its competitors, pricing changes in the industry, the degree of success of
e Company’s efforts to penetrate its target markets, technical difficulties with respect to the use of products developed by the

mpany or its licensees, and general economic conditions.

immary of Significant Accounting Policies

|
se of Estimates

he preparation of financial staternents and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
inited States of America requires management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
ompany’s consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company bases its estimates and judgments on historical
cperience and on various other assumptions that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances. However, future events are
bject to change, and the best estimates and judgments routinely require adjustment. The amounts of assets and liabilities reported in
e Company’s consolidated balance sheets, and the amounts of revenues and expenses reported for each of its fiscal periods, are
Tected by estimates and assumptions which are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for the allowance for doubtful accounts,

arranty costs, impairments, inventory, share-based compensation and income taxes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Voxware, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Verbex Acquisition Corporation and Voxware n.v. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consalidation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are generated from licensing application software, selling related computer hardware and providing services, including
professional deployment, configuration, customized application development, and training services, and software maintenance and
technical support services.

Product revenue consists of software license fees, sales of related computer hardware, and extended hardware warranties. Revenue
from the licensing of software and sale of hardware is recognized when (i) a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; (ii) the product has been shipped or electronically delivered; (iii) the license fee or hardware price is fixed and
determinable; and (iv} collection of the resulting receivable is probable. This generally occurs upon shipment of software and
hardware, or completion of the implementation, if applicable, provided coliection is determined to be probable and there are no
significant post-delivery obligations. If an acceptance period is required to ensure satisfactory delivery of the application software
solution, as may occur for the initial site implementation for new direct-sales customers, revenues are recognized upon customer
acceptance. Agreements with channel partners and some direct customers do not include an acceptance period, so revenues from the
sale of hardware and licensing of software in these transactions are recognized upon shipment. Extended hardware warranty revenue
is recognized ratably over the life of the contract, generally one year.

Services revenue consists of professional deployment, configuration, customized application development, and training services, and
software maintenance and technical support services. Professional services revenue is generally recognized as the services are
performed. For arrangements in which professional services are provided in conjunction with software, professional services revenug
for services provided prior to delivery of software is deferred until delivery of all software. Revenue from maintenance and technicafl
support, which typically consist of unspecified when-and-if-available product updates and customer telephone support services, is
recognized ratably over the term of the service period, which is generally one year.

The Company recognizes revenue in accardance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position
(*SOP”) No. 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, as amended by SOP No. 98 9. SOP 97-2, as amended, requires that revenue
recognized from multiple element arrangements that include software licenses be allocated to the various elements of the arrangemen
based on the relative fair values of the elements, such as hardware, deployment services, and maintenance and technical support
services. The Company follows the residual method of accounting under SOP 97-2, as amended. Under the residual method, the
aggregate arrangement fee is allocated to each of the undelivered elements in an amount equal to their fair values, with the residual
arrangement fee allocated to the delivered elements. The relative fair value of the undelivered elements included in the Company’s
multi-element sales arrangements is based on vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE.

VSOE exists for hardware elements sold separately. The Company determines VSOE of the fair values of maintenance and technical
support based on annual renewal rates provided to customers and for professional services based on standard hourly rates when such
services are provided on a stand-alone basis. As of June 30, 2007, the Company believes that it has realized VSOE of the fair values
for maintenance and professional services.

Deferred revenues consist of unearned customer deposits and PCS arrangements. Customer deposits are recognized as revenue upon
customer acceptance of the underlying product and services in conjunction with the recognition of deferred project costs. PCS
arrangements include extended hardware warranty, software maintenance revenues and depot management service fees. These
arrangements, which sometimes include amounts bundled with initial revenues, are deferred upon invoicing and recognized as
revenues over the term of the warranty or service period, which is typically one year. Maintenance revenues, including the amounts
bundled with initiai or recurring revenues, are recognized over the term of the maintenance support period, which is typically one
year.

The Company continues to generate royalty revenues from our legacy speech coding technology business, which was sold in 1999.
Royalties are earned on technologies our customers incorporate into their products for resale pursuant to contracts expiring at various
dates through December 31, 2009. Revenues are recognized at the time of the customers’ shipment of those products, as estimated
based upon historical reports received periodically from our customers.

Travel costs associated with professional services and billed to customers are recorded as services revenues at the time they are
incurred by Voxware. Services revenues included billed travel costs totaling $174,000 and $238,000, respectively, during the years
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.
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search and Development

search and development expenditures are charged to operations as incurred. Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting

ndards No. 86 (“SFAS 86™), “Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed”,

elopment costs incurred in connection with the research and development of software products and enhancements to existing

are products are charged to expense as incurred until technological feasibility has been established, at which time such costs are
italized until the product is available for general release to customers. The Company defines technological feasibility as the point at
ich there is a completed working model of the software product, the completeness of which is to be confirmed by testing.

cording to SFAS 86, the working model is generally deemed to exist with commencement of beta testing. No costs associated with
development of software products were capitalized during the year ended June 30, 2007.

verse Split

December 12, 2005, the Company effected a reverse split of all outstanding shares of the Company’s Common Stock, $0.001 par
lue per share (the “Common Stock™), at an exchange ratio of 1-for-150 (the “Reverse Split”). Under the terms of the Reverse Split,
ch stockholder received one share of Common Stock for every 150 shares of Common Stock owned as of the effective date. No
ctional shares of Comimon Stock were issued as a result of the Reverse Split. In lieu of any fractional shares to which the

ckholder would otherwise be entitled, the Company paid cash equal to such fraction multiplied by the closing trading price of the
mmeon Stock on the trading day immediately preceding the effective day of the Reverse Split. There were no shares of the
mpany’s Series D Convertible Preferred Stock {“Series D Preferred Stock™) outstanding on December 12, 2005, as a result, Series
Preferred Stock was not impacted by the Reverse Split. All references in the consolidated financial statements to Commeon Stock
ares and per share data have been adjusted retroactive to July 1, 2005 in response to the Reverse Split.

t Loss Per Share

sic net loss per share was computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number
common shares outstanding for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. Due to the Company’s net losses for the fiscal years
ded June 30, 2007 and 2006, the effect of including Common Stock equivalents in the calculation of net loss per share would be
ti-dilutive. Therefore, outstanding Common Stock equivalents of 1,706,461 and 1,099,992 in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007

d 2006, respectively, have not been included in the calculation of net loss per share. As a result, basic net loss per share is the same
diluted net loss per share for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. :

sh and Cash Equivalents

¢ Company currently maintains an investment portfolio consisting mainly of cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
estments in highly liquid short-term instruments (short-term bank deposits and commercial paper) with maturities of 90 days or less
m the date of purchase.

counts Receivable and Credit Policies

counts receivable are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade terms requiring payment within 30 days,
pending on contractual terms, Unpaid accounts do not bear interest. Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to the
stomer. Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice or, if
specified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoice.

e carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance that reflects management’s best estimate of the
ounts that will not be collected. Customer account balances with invoices dated over 90 days old are considered delinquent and are
served for in the valuation allowance. In addition, management reviews all other accounts receivable balances and, based on an
sessment of current creditworthiness, estimates the portion, if any, of the balance that will not be collected,

Lventory

e value our inventory at the lower of average cost (which approximates first-in, first-out cost) or market. If we believe that demand
y longer allows us to sell our inventory above cost or at all, we write down that inventory to market or write off excess inventory
vels.

roperty and Equipment

roperty and equipment are stated at cost. Purchases of property and equipment valued at less than $1,000 are charged to expense.
epreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from three to seven years.
laintenance, repairs and minor replacements are charged to expense as incurred.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, including property and equipment, and intangible assets subject to amortization, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverabld
To determine the recoverability of its long-lived assets, the Company evaluates the estimated future undiscounted cash flows that are
directly associated with, and that are expected to arise as a direct result of, the use and eventual disposition of the long-lived asset, If
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows demonstrate that recoverability is not probable, an impairment loss would be recognized
An impairment loss would be calculated based on the excess carrying amount of the long-lived asset over the long-lived asset’s fair
value.

Stock Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (“*SFAS
123(R)”}, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 123 and 95, which requires all companies to measure compensation cost for all
share-based payments, including employee stock options, at fair value. Generally, the approach in SFAS 123(R) is similar to the
approach described in Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS
123"). However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to |
recognized in the financial statements based on their fair value over the requisite service period. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an|
alternative. In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “Share-Based Payments” (“SAB 107”), which
expressed the views of the SEC regarding the interaction between SFAS 123(R) and certain rules and regulations of the SEC. SAB
107 provides guidance related to the valuation of share-based payment arrangements for public companies, including assumptions
such as expected volatility and expected term.

Prior to July 1, 2006, the Company applied the pro forma disclosure requirements under SFAS 123 and accounted for its share-based
employee compensation using the intrinsic value method under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principle
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25™), and related interpretations. In the event that option|
were granted prior to July I, 2006 at a price below the trading value on the date of grant, the difference was recorded as deferred
employee compensation and amortized over the vesting period of the option. Effective July 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair
value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R), using the modified prospective transition method. Under this transition method,
compensation cost recognized in the statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2007 includes: (a) compensation cost for the
unvested portion of all share-based payments granted prior to July 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance]
with the original provisions of SFAS 123; and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted or modified subsequent to
July 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). In accordance with the ;
modified prospective transition method, results for prior periods have not been restated.




e adoption of SFAS 123(R) resulted in shared based compensation expense of $166,000 for the year ended June 30, 2007. The
lowing table iltustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provision
SFAS 123 to options granted during the year ended June 30, 2006. Since share-based compensation expense for the year ended
e 30, 2007 was calculated under the provision of SFAS 123(R), there is no disclosure of pro forma net loss and net loss per share
that period. For purposes of the pro forma disclosure for the year ended June 30, 2006 set forth in the table below, the valuc of the
tions is estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Year Ended

(in thousands, except share data) June 30, 2006
Net loss applicable to common stockhelders:
As reported $ {6,843)
Add:

Stock-based employee compensation included in net loss 4,062
Less:

Stock-based compensation expense determined under

fair-value method for all awards, net of related tax effects (1,553)

Pro forma net loss applicable to common stockholders $ (4,334)
Net loss per share applicable to common stockholders - basic and diluted

As reported: 8 (1.22)

Pro forma: g (0.77)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding for use in computing

net loss per share applicable to common stockholders 5,596

‘arranty

e Company warrants all manufacturer defects on its voice-based solutions, generally commencing upon shipment, and extending for
elve months. The Company accrues warranty costs based on historical experience and management’s estimates. Changes in
crued warranty costs were as follows:

Balance at Charged Balance at
‘ Beginning of Costs and End of
Period Expenses Deductions Period

{In thousands)

|

! Year ended June 30, 2006 $ 74 $ 85 $ 91 $ 68
; Year ended June 30, 2007 68 128 123 73
|

pncentration of Credit Risk

nancial instruments that potentially subject the Company to cancentration of credit risk consist principally of cash balances and

ide receivables. The Company invests its excess cash in highly liquid investments (short-termn bank deposits and commercial paper).
he Company’s customer base principally comprises distribution and logistics companies in food service, grocery, retail, consumer
ickaged goods, third-party logistics providers, wholesale distributors, as well as value-added resellers. The Company does not
pically require collateral from its customers.

ne customer accounted for 22% of total revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, and 13% of total receivables at that date.
wo customers accounted for 31% and 15% of total revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. These customers accounted for
1% and 14%, respectively, of total receivables at that date.

he Company began utilizing a sole source vendor for its primary wearable computer hardware products effective in the second

warter of fiscal 2006. 78% of the Company’s inventory purchases were derived from this vendor during the year ended June 30, 2007,
compared to 40% during the vear ended June 30, 2006. Any disruption in supply by this vendor would prohibit the Company from
ipping products, and thus recognizing revenues.
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Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial statement reporting and tax base
of assets and liabilities, and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expectedt
to reverse. The measurement of deferred income tax assets is reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits that
are not expected to be realized. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized in the
period that such tax rate changes are enacted.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Voxware n.v., utilizes their local currency (Euro) as their functional currency. Their asset
and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars monthly, at exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. Revenues, expenses, gains and
losses are translated monthly, at average exchange rates during the period. Resulting foreign currency translation adjustments are
included as a component of other comprehensive (loss) income.

Comprehensive (Loss) Income

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” ("SFAS 130"), Comprehensive income is a more
inclusive financial reporting methodology that includes disclosure of certain financial information that historically has not been
recognized in the calculation of net (loss) income. SFAS 130 requires that all items defined as comprehensive (loss) income, includin
changes in the amounts of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, be shown as a component of comprehensive
(loss) income. The only items of other comprehensive (loss) income of the Company in the year ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 are
foreign currency translation adjustments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued [nterpretation No 48, *Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes-an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax positior
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 and will,
therefore, be effective for the Company for the quarter ending September 30, 2007, the first quarter of the fiscal year ending June 30,
2008. The adoption of FIN 48 1s not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s reported financial results.

In Septermnber 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not requirg
new fair value measurements. The Company is required to adopt SFAS 157 as of July 1, 2008, and is currently evaluating the impact
that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on its reported financial results,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS
159”). The statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are
not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS 159 will be effective for the Company on July {, 2008. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of SFAS 159.

2. INVENTORY:

June 30,
2007 20606
(in thousands)
Raw materials b 46 5 42
Work in process 41 400
Finished goods 999 236
Less: inventory reserve (40) (49
[nventory - net $ 1,046 $ 629
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

June 30,
2007 2006
(in thousands}

Equipment $ 1,849 $ 1,682
Leasehold improvements 103 91
Furniture and fixtures 460 460

2,412 2,233
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,053) (1,845)
Property and equipment, net 3 359 3 388

epreciation expense was approximately $212,000 and $201,000 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES:

June 390,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
Accounts payable - trade $ 1,397 § 640
Accrued compensation and benefits 959 352
Accrued inventory 483 17
Accrued professional fees 266 386
Accrued taxes 154 119
Accrued royalties 93 40
Warranty reserves 73 68
Other accrued expenses 600 490
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $ 4,025 $ 2,312

DERBT:

n December 30, 2003, the Company entered into a credit facility {the “SVB Facility”) with Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”). The SVB
acility initially provided the Company with $2,000,000 in financing, comprised of a $1,500,000 term loan and a $500,000 working
pital facility. The term foan was payable in monthly installments over a 36-month period commencing February 1, 2004. The SVB
acility bore interest at a rate of prime (8.25% as of June 30, 2007) plus 0.5% per annum, and was secured by all of the Company’s
ssets, including its intellectual property, and a guarantee by the Company’s two largest stockholders. In exchange for the SVB
Elcility guarantee, the stockholders were granted 133,333,333 Series D warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s Series D
referred Stock. The warrants were exercisable into shares of the Company’s Series D Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $0.015
er share. As a result of the August 2005 Private Placement, these warrants were converted into warrants to purchase 133,333,333
hares (888,889 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.015 per share ($2.25 per
hare shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split). The SVB Facility contains certain covenants, all of which the Company is in
ompliance with as of June 30, 2007.

he Company engaged Hempstead & Co. as its valuation expert to assist in determining the fair value of the guarantee for which the
-arrants were issued. Based on the work performed by Hempstead & Co., the Company recorded a deferred financing asset of
500,000 on its balance sheet as of December 31, 2003. This deferred asset was amortized over 36 months commencing on January 1,
004, and was fully amortized on December 31, 2006.

m May 28, 2004, the Company entered into a modification agreement with SVB to the SVB term loan, deferring the seven monthly
rincipal payments originally scheduled to occur from June 1, 2004 through December 1, 2004. Commencing on January 1, 2005, and
ver the remaining twenty-four (24) payments, the deferred principal payments were amortized and added to the original principal
ayment amount, On December 8, 2004, the Company entered into a second loan modification agreement with SVB wherein, among
ther factors, the working capital line of credit was renewed to December 27, 2005 and increased from $500,000 to $2,000,000. The
:rms of the modification agreement allowed for immediate availability of $666,667 under this working capital line of credit. The
mount of availability was determined by subtracting from $2,000,000 the amount outstanding under the term loan. Effective January
, 2003, the monthly principal payment under the term loan was approximately $56,000. These monthly principal payments under the
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term loan had the effect of increasing the available working capital line of credit by an equal amount. The renewal interest rate was a
prime plus 0.5%, with a floor rate of prime at 4.5%. The final term loan payment was made on December 1, 2006.

On November 9, 2005, the Company entered into a third loan modification agreement with SVB, providing the Company with a line
of credit of up to $1,000,000 (the “Equipment Line™) to finance the acquisition of certain eligible equipment purchased on or after

April 1, 2005. The equipment line is secured by all of the Company’s personal property, as defined in the agreement. The Compan)t
first drew upon the Equipment Line on December 16, 2005, and was required to make interest-only payments, at a rate of prime plus
1.75%, on the principal balance through May 9, 2006, at which point the Equipment Line was converted into a term loan with 30 fix
monthly payments of approximately $17,000. Effective May 9, 2006, the interest rate was fixed at 9.5%. The unpaid principal balan}
outstanding as of June 30, 2007 was $238,000.

On January 20, 2006, with an effective date of December 26, 2005, the Company entered into a fourth loan modification agreement
with SVB, renewing the working capital line of credit to December 26, 2006. The terms remained materially the same as the second
loan modification agreement, with the exception that letters of credit, foreign exchange contracts, and certain cash management relat
services, to the extent they may impose a liability on SVB, were deducted from the available limit the Company was permitted to
borrow. Letters of credit, foreign exchange contracts, and certain cash management related services were each limited to a maximum
of $100,000 in accordance with the terms of the fourth loan modification. As of December 26, 2006, this working capital line of
credit expired and the Company was no longer permitted to borrow against it.

On May 24, 2006, the Company entered into a Loan and Security Agreement with SVB (the “2006 Facility”), providing an additiong
$3,000,000 credit facility comprised of a 1,500,000 revolving line of credit (the "Revolver™) and a $1,500,000 Non-Formula Term
Loan (the "2006 Term Loan") to fund the Company's anticipated working capital needs. The Revolver is available until October 31,
2007. The 2006 Term Loan is to be repaid in thirty-six (36) equal monthly payments of principle and interest, commencing on April
1, 2007.

On January 3, 2007, with the effective date of December 29, 2006, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agrecment with SVB amending the 2006 Facility by extending the Revolver to December 28, 2007 and amending certain
covenants. The Revolver provides for a line of credit up to $1,500,000, with a $1,000,000 sub-limit to be established for cash
management and foreign exchange requirements. The availability under the Revolver is limited to a borrowing base advance rate tha
is 75% against Eligible Accounts (as such term is defined in the Revolver). Amounts outstanding under the Revolver bear interest at]
June 30, 2007 at the rate of 10%, calculated as prime plus 1.75%. Upon two consecutive quarters of profitability, the interest rate wil
be reduced to a rate of prime plus 0.5%. In addition, a fee of 0.25% is charged against the unused portion of the Revolver. No funds
were borrowed against the Revolver at June 30, 2007. Amounts outstanding under the 2006 Term Loan bear interest at June 30, 200
at a rate of 10.5%, calculated as prime plus 2.25%. Under certain conditions, any borrowings under the Company's 2006 Term Loan
will be reserved against the availability of the Revolver. $1,500,000 was borrowed against the 2006 Term Loan in December 2006,
but was repaid in January 2007. On February 1, 2007, the Company entered into a First Loan Modification Agreement with SVB,
whereby the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement was amended to allow for one term loan in addition to the one thd
was drawn in December 2006 and repaid in January 2007. The additional term loan provided under the First Loan Modification
Agreement is in an amount up to $1,500,000, which was fully utilized at March 31, 2007, with monthly principal and interest
payments commencing in April 2007,

Future minimum payments under the credit facility are as follows as of June 30, 2007 (in thousands):

Silicon Valley Bank
Working
Equipment Capital Line
Term Loan Line of Credit Total

Short Term 3 500 $ 187 $ - 8 687
Long Term:

Fiscal year 2009 500 66 - 566

Fiscal year 2009 375 - - 375
Total Debt s 1,375 $ 253 3 - 3 1,628

6. SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK WARRANTS, COMMON STOCK AND
COMMON STOCK WARRANTS:

The Company had 1,500,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock as of June 30, 2005. In conjunction with the Reverse Split, the
Company reduced the total number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 1,500,000,000 shares to 12,000,000 shares.
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e |

' fiscal years 2003 and 2004, the Company issued Series D Preferred Stock through a series of private placements. The Series D
[eferred Stock had a 7% dividend payable in cash or equity, at the election of the Company, and each share of Series D Preferred
ock was convertible into one share of the Company’s Common Stock at an initial conversion price of $0.015 per share. From July
2005 through August 10, 2005, 605,851 shares of Series D Preferred Stock were converted into 605,851 shares (4,039 shares after
‘ving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock.

August 2005, the Company conducted a prlvate placement of 206,249,997 shares (1,375,000 shares after giving effect to the

verse Split) of its Common Stock at a price of $0.032 per share ($4.80 per share after giving effect to the Reverse Split) to certain
credited investors. Aggregate proceeds to the Company were approximately $6,200,000, net of expenses and commissions. In
nnection with this transaction, the holders of a majority of the Company’s Series D Preferred Stock agreed to convert all of the

mpany’s outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock into shares of the Company’s Common Stock. As a result, 649,016,089
ares of Series D Preferred Stock were converted into 649,016,089 shares (4,326,774 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split)
Common Stock and 1,902,857 shares (12,685 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of the Company’s Commeon Stock was
ued in lieu of paying cash dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock for the period July 1, 2005 through August 11, 2005. Further,
e holders of a majority of the Company’s Series D Preferred Stock agreed to amend and restate all of the Company’s outstanding
arrants to purchase shares of Series D Preferred Stock into warrants to purchase shares of Common Stock of the Company. In
%dition, certain holders of Series D Preferred Stock waived their right to receive options to purchase up to an aggregate of 18,666,667
ares (124,444 shares after giving effect to the Reverse Split) of Common Stock as a result of delays in registering shares issued
hder the 2003 and 2004 sales of Series D Preferred Stock.

s of June 30, 2007, the Company had warrants outstanding to purchase 1,158,121 shares of the Company’s Common Stock at
cercise prices ranging from $0.15 per share to $5.76 per share. Of the warrants outstanding as of June 30, 2007, 1,112,093 were
anted in conjunction with the 2003 and 2004 private placements, 43,527 were granted in conjunction with the August 2005 private
acement, and 2,501 were granted in conjunction with other transactions. A summary of the Company’s outstanding warrants as of
me 30, 2007 is presented below:

Weighted
Average
| Exercise
| Number of Price Per
Expiration Date Shares Share
April 2008 2,501 $ 4.800
August 2010 43,527 5.432 i
June 2013 67,312 2.247 '
December 2013 888,890 2.250
Aprit 2014 155,891 0.150
Total Warrants Qutstanding 1,158,121 $ 2.092

nnual Stock Grant Retainer to Directors

1 January 1998 the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved a plan which provides for the granting to non-

nployee directors options to purchase shares of Common Stock. Each calendar year in which the Company holds an Annual Meeting
f Stockholders, each non-employee director will receive shares valued at $10,000 based on the market price of the Company’s
ommon Stock, as defined in the plan. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, and 2006, there were no shares of Common Stock
ranted pursuant to this ptan. However, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 a non-employee director received options to
urchase 6,667 shares of Common Stock pursuant to the 2003 Plan. (See Note 7 below.)

ince April 2001, all non-employee directors have volunteered to not be paid for attending any regular or special meeting of any
smmittee of the Board of Directors until further notice. Accordingly, the Company has not accrued any charges during the period
ursuant to this plan for the grant of Common Stock for attendance by members of the Board of Directors at any regular or special
eeting of any committee of the Board of Directors.

STOCK OPTIONS AND STOCK BASED COMPENSATION:

tock Option Plans

s of June 30, 2007, options to purchase 2,669 shares of Common Stock were outstanding pursuant to the 1994 Stock Option Plan as
mended (*1994 Plan™). These options may be exercised at prices ranging from $5.25 to $881.25 per share. There are no additional
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shares available for future option grants under the 1994 Plan. The period which an option may be exercised is fixed by the Board of]
Directors, up to a maximum of ten years (five years in cases of incentive stock options granted to holders of 10% or more of the
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company), and options typically vest over a four-year period.

Additionally, there were 900 shares available for future option grants under the 1998 Plan as of June 30, 2007. All options granted
under the Qutside Directors Plan shall be exercisable as to one-twelfih of the shares issued under each option on the last day of each
the 12 three-month periods immediately following the applicable grant date.

In June 2003, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2003 Stock Option Plan {“2003 Plan™). Pursuant to the 2003 Plan, the

Company may grant to eligible individuals incentive stock options (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code) and nonqualified stock
options. As of June 30, 2007, options to purchase 593,771 shares of Common Stock were outstanding under the 2003 Plan. Of such
options, 43,334 shares were granted to non-employee directors of the Company. The period during which an option may be exercise
is fixed by the Board of Directors, up to a maximum of ten years (five years in cases of incentive stock options granted to holders of
10% or more of the combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company), and options typically vest over a four-year periq

Information regarding option activity for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 under the option plans is summarized below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Contractual Instrinsic
Outstanding Per Share Term in Years Value
Options outstanding as of June 30, 2005 702,622 $ 4.350
Granted 473,736 5.560
Exercised (22,707) 2.535
Forfeited (53,659) 3.504
Expired - -
Options outstanding as of June 30, 2006 1,099,992 $ 4,959
Granted 190,444 3.703
Exercised {309,061) 2.278
Forfeited {384,935) 5.774
Expired - -
Options outstanding as of June 30, 2007 596,440 $ 5.421 8.40 $ 220,086
Options exercisable as of June 30, 2007 495,357 $ 5.568 B.25 $ 109,969




gregate intrinsic value was calculated based on the Company’s closing Common Stock price as of June 30, 2007 of $5.79 per share.
e aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised was $79,831 and $126,112, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2007 and
06. The weighted average remaining contractual term of outstanding options was 8.80 years as of June 30, 2006.

summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested options as of June 30, 2007 and changes during the year then ended is presented
low:

Weighted
Average
Options Grant-Date
Outstanding Fair Value
Nonvested options outstanding as of June 30, 2006 40,416 $ 250,482
Granted 85,667 300,664
Vested (17,778) (110,105)
Forfeited (7,222) {48,865)
Nonvested options outstanding as of June 30, 2007 101,083 $ 392,176

ock Based Compensation

December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (*SFAS
3(R)"), an amendment of FASB Statements No. 123 and 95, which requires all companies to measure compensation cost for all
are-based payments, including employee stock options, at fair value, Effective July 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value
cognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method.

e statement of operations includes total share-based employee compensation charges in the amount of $166,000 and $4,062,000,
spectively, for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, charged to operations as follows:

Year Ended

June 30,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
Cost of product revenues $ - 5 13
Cost of service revenues - 129
Research and development - 297
Sales and marketing 7 n
General and administrative 159 3,251

§ 166 § 4,062

anticipation of implementing SFAS 123(R), the Company elected to accelerate the vesting of all unvested stock options held by its
nployees as of June 30, 2006. As a result of the accelerated vesting, options to purchase 672,323 shares of Common Stock became
ercisable on that date. The fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006 compensation expense included a charge of $2,463,000 due to the
celerated vesting of options, which did not impact the year ended June 30, 2007.

s of June 30, 2007, the Company had $225,000 of unrecognized compensation expense that will be recognized as share-based
bmpensation over a weighted average period of 1.4 years. The weighted average per share fair value of stock options granted were
3.70 and $5.56, respectively, during the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.

he Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting
strictions and are fully transferable. [n addition, option valuation models require the input of subjective assumptions including the
<pected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics different from those of traded
ptions, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s
pinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options,

he fair value of each option granted during the three and year ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is estimated on the date of grant using
1e Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:
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Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006
Dividend yield - -
Expected volatility 101%-145% 100%-156%
Risk-free interest rate 4.69% - 4.92% 3.76% - 4.52%
Expected life 6.1 years 6.1 - 8.0 years

Dividend yield — The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and does not expect to do so in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Company uses an expected dividend yield of zero to calculate the grant-date fair value of a
stock option.

Expected volatility — The expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which the Company’s Common Stock price is expected §
fluctuate during the expected term of options granted. SAB 107 provides that expected volatility should be based upon the historica
volatility of the Company’s Common Stock, but adjusted based upon the expected impact of changes in the business.

Risk-free interest rate — The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remainin
term equal to the option’s expected term on the grant date. Since the U.S. Treasury Department does not issue zero-coupon securitie
with maturity periods equal to the presumed expected life of the Company’s outstanding options, the risk-free interest rate is
interpolated based on rates reported by the U.S. Treasury Department for securities with maturities shorter than and longer than the
expected life of the Company’s outstanding options.

Expected life -The expected life of stock options granted is based on the simplified method prescribed under SAB 107. Accordingly
the expected term is presumed to be the midpoint between the vesting term and the original contract term.

The Company recognizes compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period based upon options that are
ultimately expected to vest, and accordingly, such compensation expense has been adjusted by an amount of estimated forfeitures.
Forfeitures represent only the unvested portion of a surrendered option. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the timd
of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Prior to the adoption of

SFAS 123(R), the Company accounted for forfeitures upon occurrence as permitted under SFAS 123. However the estimation of
forfeitures requires significant judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from the Company’s current

estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period in which estimates are revised. The Company

estimates annual forfeiture rates of 10.2% for stock options granted to members of the board of directors, 8.1% for options granted tq
officers, and 6.9% for options granted to other staff. As of June 30, 2007, there are unvested options for approximately 101,000 shar
and management estimates 9,000 will ultimately be forfeited.

8.  401(k) SAVINGS PLAN:

|
Effective January 1997, the Company adopted a 401(k} Savings Plan ("401(k) Plan") that is available to all employees. The 401(k) |
Plan permits participants to contribute up to 85% of their base salary, pre-tax, not to exceed the limits established by the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company previously matched 25% of employee contributions on the initial 6% contributed by employees.
Effective January 1, 2002, the Company match was suspended.

All employee contributions and Company match contributions vest immediately. The Company recorded no compensation expenses
connection with the 401(k) Plan for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.

9. INCOME TAXES:

The benefit from income taxes for the year ended June 30, 2006 is comprised of two components — a gain of $248,000 generated by
the sale of net operating loss carryforwards, partially offset by a provision of $20,000 against the Company’s operations. The State ©
New Jersey passed legislation in 1999 allowing qualified technology companies based in New Jersey to apply for transfer or sale of
unused State of New Jersey net operating losses for cash. Profitable companies can buy these losses at a discount, thereby reducing
their state tax obligations. Voxware received a determination letter from the State of New Jersey to sell $3,133,000 of its losses, whic
generated cash proceeds of $248,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006. Voxware was not qualified to participate in this program
during catendar year 2006, so the program did not impact the Company’s results of operations in fiscal year 2007,

The provision for income taxes was $0 for the year ended June 30, 2007, as compared to $20,000 for the year ended June 30, 2006,
During the year ended June 30, 2006, the Company had a loss before taxes of $6,991,000 for accounting purposes. There are
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nificant differences in calculating income or loss for accounting and tax purposes, primarily relating to charges such as

ortization of deferred employee compensation that are recorded in the current period for accounting purposes, but are deferred for
x purposes. Furthermore, tax laws differ in each jurisdiction, yielding differing amounts of taxable income or loss in each
risdiction. While the Company has substantial net operating losses to offset taxable income in some taxing jurisdictions, certain
strictions preclude it from fully utilizing the benefit of these net operating losses. In addition, the expansion of the Company’s

siness may require it to file taxes in jurisdictions where it did not previously operate, and thus does not have established net
erating losses to offset the tax Lability.

eferred tax assets reflects the impact of temporary differences as follows:

June 30,

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 14,827 3 14,179

Allowances and reserve accounts 235 265

Accrued expenses 538 487

Deferred balances 1,296 694

Research and development credit 866 975
Total deferred tax assets 17,762 16,600
Valuation Allowance (17,143) (16,409)
Deferred tax liabilities:

Capitalized software (16) (16)

Depreciation & amortization (603) (17%)
Net deferred tax assets 3 - $ -

s of June 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $41,000,000 of federal net operating loss carry-forwards for tax reporting
urposes available to offset future taxable income; such carry-forwards begin to expire in 2009. Net operating loss carry-forwards

ere $39,000,000 as of June 30, 2006. The Company has established a full valuation allowance against their deferred tax assets. The
ompany is not aware of any factors which would generate significant differences between taxable income and pre-tax accounting
come in future years except for the reversal of current or future net deductible temporary differences. A full valuation allowance has

een provided on the net deferred tax asset because of the uncertainty regarding realization of the deferred asset as a result of the
perating losses incurred to date.

e Tax Reform Act of 1986 enacted a complex set of rules limiting the potential utilization of net operating loss and tax credit carry-
rwards in periods following a corporate “ownership change.” In general, for federal income tax purposes, an ownership change is
eemed to occur if the percentage of stock of a loss corporation owned (actually, constructively and, in some cases, deemed) by one or
ore “5% shareholders” has increased by more than 50 percentage points over the lowest percentage of such stock owned during a
ee-year testing period. During 2003, such a change in ownership occurred. As a result of the change, the Company’s ability to
tilize certain of its net operating loss carry-forwards will be limited. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of the August
005 private placement on its ability to utilize net operating loss carry-forwards.

esearch and development credits expire in accordance with provisions of applicable tax law, and have remaining lives ranging from
| to 20 years. The Company had no accumulated earnings in Europe.
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company leases its office facilities and certain equipment under operating leases with remaining non-cancelable lease terms
generally in excess of one year. Rent expense, including escalations, was approximatety $517,000 and $536,000 for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Future minimum rental payments for the Company’s office facilities and equipment
under operating leases as of June 30, 2007 are as follows:

(in thousands)

Year ending June 30, 2008 5 195
Year ending June 30, 2009 187
Year ending June 30, 2010 166
Year ending June 30, 2011 157
Year ending June 30, 2012 160
Year ending June 30, 2013 27
S o

The Company’s principal facility is located in Cambridge, Massachusetts. The original term for the lease of this office space expired
on June 30, 2007, but was extended through July 31, 2007, Subsequent to June 30, 2007, Voxware moved its Cambridge operations
into a new facility. The new lease agreement is through August 31, 2012. Total payments under the lease consist of a base rent,
which increases annually, and an expense charge of 3.03% of the landlord’s building expenses. The initial base rent is $129,200 for
the first year of the lease. Thereafter, the base rent will increase by $7,632 on the anniversary of the lease commencement date.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, which arise in the ordinary course of

business. While the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not believe that the outcome of an
of these legal matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results or financial condition.

1. SEGMENT INFORMATION:

Voxware’s international operations team headquartered in England serves all customers outside of North America. International
operations, which historically focus primarily on the United Kingdom, contributed 26% of the Company’s revenues during the year |
ended June 30, 2007, as compared to 25% during the year ended June 30, 2006. As of June 30, 2007, Voxware's international
operations team consisted of 11 employees located in England, Belgium and France. Long-lived assets supporting the international
operations, consisting of computer hardware, fumiture and fixtures, were not a material component of total long-lived assets as of Jur
30, 2007 and 2006. '

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

In connection with its annual review of executive compensation, on September 4, 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Board o
Directors approved the award to certain named executive officers of the Company the aggregate of 198,100 options to purchase
Common Stock and 187,586 restricted stock units, or RSUs. The stock options were granted in accordance with the Company's 2003
Stock Incentive Plan, as amended at an exercise price of $6.95, which was the closing price of the Company's commen stock, as liste:
on the NASDAQ Capital Market on September 4, 2007. The stock options granted shall vest at a rate of 1/36th of the original numbe
of shares at the end of each month of employment with the Company, commencing October 4, 2007, until the third anniversary of the
grant date. The RSUs shall vest at a rate of 1/36th of the original number of shares at the end of each month of employment with the
Company, commencing October 4, 2007, until the third anniversary of the grant date.
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